
!~ I ~ J Missouri Department of Natural Resources 

AGENDA 
Missouri Soil and Water Districts Commission 

Telephone Conference Call 
Lewis and Clark State Office Building 

LaCharrette/Nightingale Conference Room 
Jefferson City, MO 

April 13, 2016 
9:30 a.m. 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
B. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 
C. DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 

1. Nutrient Trading Overview 
D. SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM DIRECTOR'S 

COMMENTS 
1. FY16 Cost-Share/AgNPS Fund Status 
2. 2016 Area Meetings Update 
3. FY16/FY17 Budget Updates 
4. Natural Resources Damages Awarded Funding 
5. State Water Plan Research Funding (Concurrence Requested) 
6. U.S. Geological Survey Monitoring Network (Concurrence Requested) 

E. REQUEST 
(If a supervisor request is received in advance of this meeting, it may be presented to the 
commission.) 
1. Johnson SWCD Supervisor Request 
2. Callaway and Lewis SWCDs - N340 Cover Crop Practice Started Prior to Board 

Approval of Contract _ 
3. Camden SWCD - Variance to the DSP 2 Permanent Vegetative Cover 

Enhancement Policy on Land Already in a Maintenance Agreement 
4. Gasconade and Franklin SWCDs - Variance on the N340 Cover Crop Practice 

No-Till Requirement 
F. APPEALS 
G. NEW BUSINESS 
H. REPORTS 

1. NRCS 
2. University of Missouri 
3. Department of Conservation 
4. Department of Agriculture 
5. MASWCD 



MISSOURl SOIL & WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
April 13, 2016 
Page 2 

I. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
J. SUGGESTED DATE(S) OF NEXT MEETINGS 

June 8, 2016 at 1 :30 p.m., MDC Central Regional Office, Gans Road, Columbia MO 

K. ADJOURNMENT 

. ~- ·. · ·- .. 
Those wishing to address the commission on any of the above issues need to contact a program 
staff member, Theresa Mueller or sign up on the comment card at the commission meeting. 

If you have any questions regarding this meeting, special accommodation needs, or would like a 
copy of any material provided at the commission meeting, please contact Theresa Mueller at 
573-526-4662. 

The Soil and Water Districts Commission may go into closed session at this meeting if such 
action is approved by a majority vote of the commission members who constitute a quorum to 
discuss legal, confidential, or privileged matters under§ 610.021(1), RSMo 2000; personnel 
actions under §610.021 (3); personnel records or applications under §610.021 (13), records under 
§ 610.021 (14 ), or audit issues under § 610.021 (17), which are otherwise protected from 
disclosure by law. 



OTHERS PRESENT VIA TELEPHONE: HOWARD: Beverly Dometrorch; 
JEFFERSON: George Engelbach; MISSOURI SOIL AND WATER 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION (MSWCDEA): 
Sandy Stratman; MISSOURI COALITION FOR THE ENVIRONMENT: Heather 
Navarro 



MINUTES--MISSOURI SOIL & WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
February I 0, 2016 
Page2 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting was called to order at the Lewis and Clark State Office Building, in 
Jefferson City, MO, in the LaCharrette Conference Room at I 0:38 a.m. 

Roll call was taken and the following commissioners were present via the telephone: 
Charles Ausfahl, H. Ralph Gaw, Jeff Lance and Gary Vandiver, yvhich made a quorum . 

.. ;:;:f/~1k~:;~:-
Chairman Vandiver informed the Commission that Tim Martin.J:1~~.®:~:t_confirmed by the Senate; 
therefore, he is no longer on the Commission. .;:::;if' ··\$~~~:::: .. 

,i&\;,:' '¢%~~{%, 
B. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETINE .,~t@::-.· .. ·.·.·~ ~. ..~ .. ". ..... ~ .. ~ . ._·. 

Jeff Lance made a motion to approve the _.¢:fit~l~~- for th·~~p,ecember I, 20'i~~iW¢~eting. H. 
Ralph Gaw seconded the motion. When polleCl;~:@~:~:le.~;$u'S{~hl, H. Ralph:J faw, Jeff 
Lance and Gary Vandiver voted in favor of the rrf6\tQ:n~'and the motion caiTied 

. '-"::@~:;; •• 
unammously. ::::.,. ~:::;-:::::~'-. 

)>~:::;_:!~;.... . '~~::::~.::;: .... 
~-~"!:~;:.~~:;-....... ~<?::::::~~ .... 

\;~·%:~:~:=~:!;;;..... ~::::::;:~.. .. ... 
~{\*·~~~~;;~;~;~~v~. "~~~l,~~;l/ 

C. DEPARTMENT OF NATUR\~ll~§_tp~CES}~
7 

1. Election of Commission Chait~~n,g:;?Viclili)t~!w~~-
. Joe ~nge~ID~f~$.$~M!1e floor for '1~inations $f•"the posit~ons of Chair and _Yice

Chair. ~arles f\ti§A~lil made a mqt~on to re-elect the Chauman Gary Vandiver 
and ~:f~~f~irma1''.alph Gaw by'.\~ .. ~!~.mation. Jeff Lance seconded the ~notion. 
When poB~&f=hait~~;:J\.usfahl, H. R~lp11 Gaw, Jeff Lance and Gary Vandiver 
voted in fav&l~~f, .. tfi:i~~n~;:and..th.<&l11otion carried unanimously. 

?...::.::s:::i.~1::.:~~~· -~ --~~~$~-:~ ~ ~~~ .. x~::::;~::S::~:::?:;-· 
:;$.§_~:f!&~Y .::j.~~~:~:::~:~;:~ -~~:w:~ ~.~~~;-

~ii?"' Depatllij:~\t of Nitl)l; .. ~l Resources Updates 
»'/~~f~i\, Joe Enge~~~~~rted··r~,Jipartment was continuing their efforts on the ~~gional 
' ··.:~mh Conservat1on~j~iiners!jp· Program and they plan to announce some additional 

'X:(~atersheds a;iJ~y mo\re forward with Our Missouri Waters. 
··~::=:~:~~.... !::::: 

"1_;~~~~~ext \ ,i Mtnission meeting, Mr. Engeln plans to provide information on 
nuti-i"eM?~t:i:df6i· water quality trading in Missouri. Since last July stakeholders have 
been w"&.lfeng on this topic with participation from conununities and agriculture. 
He stateCl they are on schedule to meet their goal of presenting the draft 
framework to the public in June. The framework is the policy background that 
provides a base for nutrient trading. They would like to have the public meeting 
tied to the Clean Water Conunission meeting in July, and then three months later 
at their October meeting approve it as their framework. 



MINUTES--MISSOURI SOIL & WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
February 10, 2016 
Page 3 

D. 

He updated the Commission on the department ' s continued work on E3 
(Enhancing Effectiveness and Efficiency). He also provided information on the 
Gulf Hypoxia Task Force meeting that will be held in St. Louis on April 25-27. 

SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM DIRECTOR'S 
COMMENTS 
Colleen Meredith thanked everyone who was able to participf.!:t¢~~~~e telephone 
conference call and for all their hard work. ..:i?" ., 

1. 

2. 

,.;/~~f:t~lt:; .. 
FY16 Cost-Share/AgNPS Fund Status ·:f;f .. :~B:~:;~ .. 

X·'" '.'.'.V•"" 

April Brandt presented the Fiscal Year (F~J~:f.O N:? .. Regul a'f{~l:?.~t-Share and 
Agricultural Nonpoint Source (AgNPS).:§fre'Ct~J Area Land 'f.f~~t!.)1ent (SALT) 
Fund Status report She stated that as..:~fFebruary 3," 2016, $43··.~~®!Jion_ had been 

._,,)'.·.•""~ ..... ·~· .... S!1~ ..... ..... ,, 
allocated and of that amount, $30J,rtitJl~R.had be·~R .. obligated. The·::t~t§f'amount 
paid was approximately $13.4 million.'"~~f F~.l;i;i:tl~~Y 3, 2016, $1 i&>:ooo of the 

~..;~ .... .:·.·~· . · .·~· .. · ... .,, 
SALT Cost-Share had been allocated and ·G~~~t amount, $50,610 had been 
obligated. The total amount paid was approxIM~ely $38,260 . 

. ;~*~":;.~.," -.;~{]i:::·, 
.. ;-;;:<>!--&~~~~ '•"•~oo"'•'~~.... '.• . 

Next, she covered the FYl &:~liPPJ¢'nix,µtal allocatio·it:~s::of February 3, 2016, 
approximately $15. 7 million \~s b~t1$,;J.~~¥:i-9ed to tlif :Ci istricts that qualified. 
There have been a total of sev~~:.su.l?..J.~l~iH~fi1~1~~~bpc~tions between 
August 6, f.@:!~~tl.Y.9:-. February 4,~~Wf6, for a to!ij:Vof $17 million this year for 
supplen1~tit~iYati:&gi~i;0ns. There ~.re 102 districts that received allocations . 

.. x:~~h:-. ~:rm \~~., . 
.$" '":.~::.~.·~~ )..•.•~ T ,•.•~' """/ 

Plan for~tlj~~~utur:~tvpdate WP 
Jim Plass~~~~~m~J~e\1@'.~~a.ll::µni. qat.~lcfn the CrnTent Conservation Practices 
~···· ·· -~""' - ·@::~:;::-W-'.&~"~ 

.-~~i~@W:[~~~~ittee:\~~fuhe Comm:fS'sJ~bi1 ' s request, one of the items the committee 
.-/~f'··" discu~:~~(!f\~;;i.s tht~ra:?;ing School issue that was brought before the Commission .. :A~K by Dade"siJ§p at tH~~&l~~-eh1ber Commission meeting. The group worked on a 

·:=" .. ~¥'%~. plan on how:;t:&~proceed~With concerns that were raised. He stated there would be 
.... ~:~~~1~w.ore inform~~l~J:1 at thl next Commission meeting. The Commission also wanted 

"'.~Wt~",group to lq:gi< at the issue of starting a practice prior to board approval. He 
~i~Qed eve!jbne that there were appeals at the last Commission meeting 
reg~f.~\hg, t.h.i.@:=!ssue. After discussion, the group decided to continue with the 
polici~~~@1it' were already in place. He stated there is another request from 
Shanno.ffSWCD regarding an animal waste storage facility for small ruminants. 
The committee discussed this issue as well and will bring it to the Commission for 
their response to the request. Another item discussed was consolidating pipe 
components for terraces. The committee was interested in the idea and will get 
more information from other districts. This information will be presented to the 
Commission for their consideration. The committee also discussed the practice 
policy reviews. He thanked everyone who participated in this committee meeting. 



MINUTES--MISSOURI SOIL & WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
February 10, 2016 
Page 4 

3. District Specialist Testing 
Bill Wilson presented an update on the District Specialist testing. There have been 
three testing sessions; since November 30, 2015, 74 district staff have taken the 
tests and 61 have passed at least four of the seven tests for the progression. There 
are additional training sessions planned for other regional locations. 

4. Update on the Program Delivery and Operations Sub~ommittee 
Colette Weckenborg presented an update on the Progr~~~rlivery and Operations 
Subcommittee. The progression line developed by tp.~::s"i.1bcommittee received 
Commission concurrence and was implemented .~a~f:'i~Bary 1, 2016. As of the 
January 1st allocations, there are 122 District ~~ciali'§tl~~) Is, 34 DS Us, 
67 DS Ills and 46 DS IVs. {< ."'\ '~::tk: .. 

.-:4$*~~'.:::, '">.; :t:~j1~l\:; .. 
5. 2016 Area Meetings Update .~;:::.. ":::::::::::::: .. 

~ .... -.:_.. -.-:,.:.;·::<·:·. 
Bill :Vilson presented an update olV~~~p 16 Aref:::·Meetings sch~<f'¥ig?fhe 
meetmgs are scheduled for the week of::!s.~~ch ~:§fil:~.Q.16 . A meetmg;:-is scheduled 
in each of the eight Missouri AssociatiortQ;~~'~W .. and Water Consefvation District 

··:~:*~.."~·:, 

areas. ~t:::::::." ··::;~~!ij\:;. 

6. Soil Health Assessment C:~J~iW~UR.date ":::::'~k .... -::::· 
Colleen Meredith presented~ 'L'iitif~~~ib-J.Whe Soil H~ltl; Assessment Center 
(SHAC). She stated the UnivJ=~~.ity o{$fi$f~);~~~im~ffor high quality, strong 

?'.;; ,.;(.-":• ~-~;X:-:«;::.~ 
quality assurar.w~guality controfaan'G~to be rd~:v.:ant to Missouri. The lab has 
receive~.:J:~if&i:~l~les. She poi;~id out that Jf es not mean there are 1,870 
contr~.9.~~1ere co'U;Wbe multiple '§~nples per contract. The SHAC is working on 
a datf(bii~}~W: com:~f~ative uses ~or:~~}flsa.mples an~ it will b~ on a re~ional. basi~, 
as well star~~l:~r-.¥Jm\\*\~i<:~~~:~1~~t~>n usmg the s?1l sur.vey mformat10n with tl:1s 

,,::;!~~~~~\\£:::~~~~. Abo1-t!§:~~~3] ~ef'Cj~~~J:'tne samples re~e1ved d.1d ~ot have adequate soil 
..._ft,::-.'·, mfo~tf,P,JJ ... neede~h~h1ch will be worked on with the d1stncts. She presented a 

.-:At list of wf1il~~~ch oftli~}~pil)1ealth packages covered, as well as the cost for each. 
N.','.'.'• ·,-.<'.".'.~ -..-.·.·~·;:i«." '.' 

.;::»:=::M~:·.. She stated HU~;i~nalytic~!=:a~sessments of soil health is relatively new and need 
":~~~~\::_fundamental q:;~.brati011~compared to traditional soil fertility and nutrient testing. 

·-::W~W?.~ SHAC is WF.J:eveloping the data base and baseline for association with soil 
t(~pp._ing unit~~t~r the data development. There is a need for whole soil profile 
lanti~~~pe a~.~~:~sment. 

·-:~:!::~~::::-:~:=*;>' 

Next, ~tl~~{~vered the lab renovation that was taking place. The lab, office/sample 
storag~: sample preparation area and breezeway are completed; now they are 
working on the training room. 

7. FY16/FY17 Budget Updates 
Colette Weckenborg presented an update on the FY 16/FYl 7 Budget. She 
reminded the Commission that for this time of year the obligations for cost-share 
exceed last year's obligations. Because of this, the program has submitted a 



MINUTES--MISSOURI SOIL & WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
February IO, 20I6 
Page 5 

E. 

request for supplemental funding for the current fiscal year in the amount of 
$4 million for cost-share. This would bring the appropriation authority to $35 
million for this year. She stated this was being considered through the legislative 
process. The FYI 7 budget is in process also; both the House and the Senate 
appropriation committees have heard the initial readings of the Governor' s 
Reconunended Budget. She pointed out there is a new decision item for cost
share in the amount of $3 .8 mi Ilion, as well as a redirect of $200,000 from SALT 
to cost-share. There is also an additional $5 million recmfhnendation from the 
Governor for cost-share in FYI 7, which brings the tQtil;:;[;·~::;P·YI 7 cost-share to 

.-.":···x 
$40 million. She pointed out that the new decisio1;J::iR~in .. request of $3 million for 

,..is .... ..., -~..:·····""-\,.•..;.,. 

District Grants to support the Plan for the FutL.~f:H"id n~~*~~ reconm1ended by the 
Governor ·-:~ ~':&:-. ~4"•._~"~ '*\}\, .·. 

REQUEST .·:·:·~:- ":::-. ~~. ,.~:Y 

1. Reconstruction of Practices und:;~~1la\~na,~~:::i,;~at Were Da_iWi~ed From 
Recent Storm Events: Cape Girardeat{:S~@]), Lawrence SWCD, McDonald 
SWCD, Miller SWCD, ~ewton SWCD, Rl&i.oJds SWCD, Ste. Genevieve 

'-.. :!;~·~ ~~·==· SWCD, Wayne SWCD '~:::i~~"'" ~;::;;~:~,, 
. ~$i:::S::.;:,-:;.·.~ • -~~::::::·~· ' . 

J 111: Bosche1i presented a re~<§.~tt%\*~~onstructio·F1~i~W~Pa~tices under . 
mamtenance that were damag~d frm'l),l:e:~wt storm e¥,ents m the followmg 

. . -~& ... -.::~@»··. -;..< 
counties: Cape Girardeau, Law.trnce,~#)'ic:©;R'k~~,~"JYfiller, Newton, Reynolds, Ste. 
Genevieve ailcl.i:i~{ayne. The stoffJil..:t~fents oc~$~fd in late December resulting in 
heavy stod%f:~ft~ifu.oding. The1:~£.rere two F~deral Emergency Management ... :...-~ ":--:-::.-.;~·· ·.~.·. 

Ager~.ft~~f4~-~laratio1~~~)me dated Jaff&,ary 2 and the other January 2 I , 20 I 6 that 
mai61y ?~&l:;i;.~d to g1~nts for homeow;»~fa. There were 74 counties in Missouri 

·.:.~ .. !·······.. 1•~·~···· - -:;...·· .. · 
that were intl:ti!i:~~c;l~fr\:~~Jf~}&~9.~ral Eurergency Management Agency (FEMA) 

··~v·-·;..;o..:~···.::." 4" .., ... ~.~-x>.,_,~v.·.·;;.-............ x»'¢' 
.·:~:::;:~~~;!l~*JiM Mis·sq~fi .. Disastei;:~tJ.:M!~i·ation as of January 4, 20I 6. 

>°:4~;:::·:·····•••c•.•-!,~'.~i~ili~~~$:;,.. ._~:'.~~:!}::>. . • . 
..-:fl{. Mr. BoscT~f:~~tated"·fJl~t~*ere three issues for the Commission to consider. All 

-v-v····~;;:;::;;:;i;:;., tlu·ee issues·::att:Hor the'·:&~:;,'counties under FEMA-3374-EM. The first issue; 
·-:-:.-:·:·~ .· '<··.;.;.;... .. .... ...,, 

'~\fo~~hould the Cdmfilpissioff give blanket approval for reconstruction of soil and water 
·· =:::?;[§9:9.~ervation ~~i'ctices currently under a maintenance agreement that were 

aam~ged fron~~~evere storms, tornadoes, straight-line winds, and flooding 
begi. g i;mfDecember 22, 20I5 . The second issue should the Commission allow 
the Iari~~¥r.Wers who have already repaired the damage to their practices under 
maintep:frnce to receive cost-share provided they have appropriate documentation 
and the third issues should the Commission allow the landowners cost-share for 
reconstruction of fence for WQIO Stream Protection and N472 Livestock 
Exclusion. Next, Commission policies were covered, as well as pictures that the 
districts submitted of the damaged practices. He stated the Soil and Water 
Conservation Program was proposing reconstruction of fencing at 50 percent cost
share instead of 75 percent because in most cases the materials are there and just 



MINUTES--MISSOURI SOIL & WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
February 10, 2016 
Page 6 

F. 

.. 

need to be reinstalled/repaired. Grouped components are suggested to be broken 
into their individual components to only pay on items that were damaged. 

After discussion, H. Ralph Gaw made a motion to allow the 74 counties in the 
FEMA-3374-EM Missouri Disaster Declaration as of 01/04/16 approval to use 
their cost-share allocation to rebuild practices still under maintenance that were 
damaged, limiting reconstruction on fence to 50 percent. District can use their 
FY16 or FYI 7 cost-share allocation by the deadline d~:!:~~t:fpecember 31, 2016. 
Jeff Lance seconded the motion. When polled, ChaiJ~s:::A.usfi:l:hl, H. Ralph Gaw, 
Jeff Lance and Gary Vandiver voted in favor oqu~*~!,jon and the motion carried 

• • ... <... .·.·.~ . .,J>''· 
unammously. ..:1::? ··:::&::~";;:;. . 

.-~h ·:~\\ ~~~@~::::; .. 
Jeff Lance made a motion to allow the lanC;lti~e1:s in the 74:'.:~bimties in the 
FEMA-3374-EM Missouri Disaster Q.~~f~ratio~ who have al;:~~~h1:epaired the 
damage to th~ir practices und_er m~J~lwr.nce to t~:~.~ive cost-shai~~~~ff.~~ded they 
have appropnate documentat10n. FL Ra:t~{Ja~.:~~Q.9;pded the mot19)1::· When 
polled, Charles Ausfahl, H. Ralph Gaw, J~Tu~Ifce and Gary Vandiver voted in 
favor of the motion and the motion carried uffdttimously. 
. •:t~t~~~-... ··::;:~~~i~~;; .. 
After discussion, H. Ralph~~~1m~ge a motion td~~1i~,».!.§the 74 counties in the 
FEMA-3374-EM Missouri Ut§as=~t~.!~i~r~tion cos~£~fiare for reconstruction of 
fence for WQ 10 ~tream Prote~?n a11~~:N?:}~~:i~~~~fock Exclusion. Jeff Lance 
seconded t~~-t~&~pn. When pol\~~€harles 1'~fahl, H. Ralph Gaw, Jeff Lance 
and Garx.,:~:a1¥a:r:~®:¥.oted in favo\))fthe moti&[ and the motion carried 

. ..~;:::·:- 1 <::~:=:!~;~ {~~ 
unamp);Q;ii\~ y. ·.;;:;::;:~ '<-~:, 

RE~~::~%~-f}~}Y 
~-d~: .. · Dep~rtQt{~1J:~ of Ng~~µIture 

Aif~t Judy Grunq~~f._repoit~~)R~Je Baker is working with them on the Agriculture 
.;:::·:·:·;-;:~l~lh.. Stewardship~@-~.?uranc~f)fogram, as well as with pesticide applicator training. He 

.. ::::~:M:d s updating tn~U~.traini11"g modules for the pesticide applicators. She stated the 
··::\j~~.~partment o~m!griculture submitted comments to Enviromnental Protection 

A'.:gfo.\Y regarw){g changes to both the private and commercial applicator licenses. 
····~~~~~~.~~~:::: .. ' .~:~;~~~;:·· 

She sta:f~W:ffiere will be training in their Feed Program to ensure their Feed 
Manuf~ffuring Firms are prepared to deal with the Food Safety Modernization 
Act. She pointed out they are working on getting their feed lab accredited also. 

Robert Kallenbach added that University Extension had a stakeholder meeting 
regarding the proposed regulations for pesticide applicators. They believe the 
training for this is going to be a challenge. Ms. Grundler stated they are also 
working on revamping their commercial applicator testing methods. 



MINUTES--MISSOURI SOIL & WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
February 10, 2016 
Page 7 

2. Natural Resources Conservation Service 
J. R. Flores reported the Conservation Stewardship Program has $150 million 
available nationwide; last year in Missouri there were 118,000 acres enrolled and 
this year Missouri has been allocated 264,000 acres. The Environmental Quality 
Incentive Program (EQIP) has over 500 applications preapproved and are 
expecting over 1,000 by the end of the year. Missouri was selected to be a 
Strikeforce State; this is where USDA agencies identify ways to leverage partner 
activities in order to bring economic opportunities to r._.g$li~: .. in rural areas. He 
stated the agency has been allocated additional funq.$;for this ·effort tlu·ough EQIP. 
The Emergency Watershed Protection Program ~~~~n.§:~ussed at three public 
meetings around the state. Some of the typical.;:P,~&'J ectWf~~)his program are debris 
and sediment removal from streams, levee :~p~rt.& and sit~iijl;i;£ank stabilization. 
He reported there have been 20 requests .. uiti;::~!:tg_tal of $10 iiiilJWP· He reported 
their Service Center in Barry County .. ntf6'ded a~d since this wli~~.&:._second time 
in three years that it flooded the bl!HQJ~, they a!~ .. looking for ari'tft;~:::tet:ation. 
The Wetland Mitigation Banking Pr;gfl~:~as ~~).C2.µnced. It is ma~~:>possible by 
the 2014 Farm Bill and assists farmers ait8:f~.!*-9Hers w'hen they neetf to mitigate 
acres in order to make ths:,ir operations effe~r~~ 

. . . . \~~l$~~=k .-.. ··::~lt.%k . 
3. U mvers1ty of M1ssoun ~:;;:;-··~:;::~~:::;::·;·.. --::@::§::..~:~:::·· 

Dr. Robert Kallenbach repo~~~d--tl~~~~rl:k,continue tq1~brk on the Grazing School 
~:i~- . ··~:s;:::»=»:..~ ~.~..;~ . . . 

based on the Current Conservli;}~on PI~Gtt~:~~~~MH£-:9Jllimttee d1scuss10ns. They 
have had L~J.l~:i:.-~chools to tr"~l-:!f~i1kers al5~lWt"igriculture. It has been an 
effective..,~Ji15gfa\.tm~: the farmingj~_ommuniti€§~ They have also spent time on 
flood I~~p£?nses ov~1~~he last mont~:!1elping people to deal with specific situations 
from::>a"rl~foual per~P,~ctive . They afi~::;w;orking on new curriculums at the 
University:t~tt.hej$:f~~w.mg: Hay s .iJib'ol that was piloted and now being put 

.~·::}.~~t!t~J: for ~fl~1J<le~·w~~:~~~Wl~~1~liTransfer regarding the transfer of farm 
.-:*~~~~~,o~rltr~lfm:Jrom··at~kgeneration .. fo another; as well as Conunercial Horticulture . 

.. ::6~·' He infoi~~f:~~~:~~~ cJli~g~~:~i:9n they are working on a meeting to discuss 
~:~.---.:-.:~~t\-. commerc1a1'=:aguculture:m:t-the state. 

·-:::qt~~ ··::t~i\% } ;:-· 
4. -.::;;~~J).~partment qfltonservation 

"tf§\~_otter pr~~nted an update on Chronic Wasting Disease; there were new 
fin~~gi;'" in C~fe and Franklin counties and they are now conducting intensive 
samp°fti{§~#f=those counties. As of the date of the Commission meeting, there have 

"-"··:.<.· 
been 6,}00 samples collected and the results are pending on 1,600 of them. 

She stated the Monarch Steering Committee is comprised of representatives from 
almost all state and federal agencies, commodities groups, private industries and 
non-govenm1ental organizations. The Department of Conservation is about to 
finalize the process of hiring a Coordinator to help them write and finalize the 
State Monarch Action Plan. They are also working on hiring a State Monarch and 
Pollinator Coordinator. 



MINUTES--MISSOURI SOIL & WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
February 10, 2016 
Page 8 

G. 

5. Missouri Association of Soil and Water Conservation Districts 
Kenny Lovelace informed the Commission that on February 17, in Jefferson City 
at 10:00 a.m. , they will have a State Board Meeting with an Educational Seminar 
in the evening, and invited everyone to attend. 

Approved by: 



_,. .:;• .-

Master Fund Status Summary 
# Contract % Contract #Contract 

District Allocated Obligated %Obligated Contracts Pal'.ment Pal'.ment Pal'.ments Pending 

FY: 2016 Fund Code:R Pr.oject:A WM - ANIMAL W A:STE MANAGEMENT 

$2,301,610.00 $1,338,396.09 58.15% 65 $768,571.85 33.39% 33 $93,283.26 

FY: 2016 Fund Code:R Project:CCC - CHARITON PILOT COVER CROP 

$35,000.00 $21,097.50 60.28% 9 $0.00 0.00% 0 $0.00 

FY: 2016 Fund Code:R Project:GM - GRAZING MANAGEMENT 

$6,530,393.56 $4,262,867.41 65.28% 1254 $1,905,840.47 29.18% 583 $159,094.37 

FY: 2016 Fund Code:R Project:IM - IRRIGATION MANAGEMENT 

$1,847,801.94 $1,392,569.91 75.36% 242 $836,477.18 45.27% 143 $31,827.49 

FY: 2016 Fund Code:R Project:NP - NUTRIENT & PEST MANAGEMENT 

$1,124,745.00 $560,125.10 49.80% 666 $534,329.70 47.51% 644 $0.00 

FY: 2016 Fund Code:R Project:SA - SENSITIVE AREAS 

$3,687 ,131.20 $1,920,531.17 52.09% 381 $841,208.28 22.81% 181 $99,444.85 

FY: 2016 Fund Code:R Project:SGE - SHEET AND RILL I GULLY EROSION 

$27,215,749.34 $23, 716, 7 42.95 87.14% 4718 $11,787,885.92 43.31% 1939 $510,562.07 

FY: 2016 Fund Code:R Project: WE - WOODLAND EROSIQN 

$2,147,522.72 $867,917.25 40.41% 294 $311,435.63 14.50% 113 $26,947.69 

Subtotal for R $44,889,953. 76 $34,080,247.38 75.92% 7629 $16,985,749.03 37.84% 3636 $921,159.73 

FY: 2016 Fund Code:SN Project:BDSP-31- BUFFER SINKHOLE IMP 

$24,300.00 $0.00 0.00% 0 $0.00 0.00% 0 $0.00 

FY: 2016 Fund Code:SN Project:NRDSE - NRD SOUTHEAST 
$5,000.00 $0.00 0.00% 0 $0.00 0.00% 0 $0.00 

FY: 2016 Fund Code:SN Project:NRDSW - NRD SOUTHWEST 

04/06/2016 9:11 :34AM Page 1 of3 0 
~ 



Master Fund Status Summary 
# Contract % Contract #Contract 

District Allocated Obligated %Obligated Contracts Pa:yment Pa:yment Pa:yments Pending 

$55,245.83 $0.00 0.00% 3 $0.00 0.00% 0 $51,245.83 

FY: 2016 Fund Code:SN Project:SN093 - HURRICANE CREEK AND LITTLE WHJTEW ATER 
$6,066.52 $6,066.52 100.00% 1 $6,066.52 100.00% 1 $0.00 

FY: 2016 Fund Code:SN Project:SN095 - UPPER BIG C~EK 
$2,809.22 $2,809.22 100.00% 2 $0.00 0.00% 0 $0.00 

FY: 2016 Fund Code:SN Project:SN096 - CROWLEY'S Rll>GE 

$12,308.28 $7,281.20 59.16% 1 $7,281.20 59.16% 1 $0.00 

FY: 2016 Fund Code:SN Pr-oject:SN098 - WARM FORK OF SPRING ~IVER 

$40,000.00 $9,541.43 23.85% 2 $0.00 0.00% 0 $0.00 

FY: 2016 Fund Code:SN Pr-oject:SN099- HEATHS CREEK 

$14,912.00 $14,912.00 100.00% 1 $14,912.00 100.00% 1 $0.00 

FY: 2016 Fund Code:SN Project:SN102 - SOUTH WYACONDA 

$10,000.00 $10,000.00 100.00% 1 $10,000.00 100.00% $0.00 

Subtotal for SN $170,641.85 $50,610.37 29.66% 11 $38,259.72 22.42% 4 $51,245.83 

04/06/2016 9:11:34AM Page 2 of3 



... -

Master Fund Status Summary 

Master Fund Status Summary (2016) 
Subtotal for R $44,889,953. 76 $34,080,24 7 .38 75.92% 7629 $16,985,749.03 37.84% 3636 $921,159.73 

Subtotal for SN $170,641.85 $50,610.37 29.66% 11 $38,259.72 22.42% 4 $51,245.83 

Report Totals $45,060,595.61 $34,130,857. 75 75.74% 7640 $17,024,008.75 37.78% 3640 $972,405.56 

04/06/2016 9:11:34AM Page 3 of3 



m 
us Anny Corpe 

ofEnglneera 
Kansas City District 

05 



Contents 

Section 1 Task Options ...................................................................................................... _.. .. 1 

Section 2 Tasks and Timeline ........• ; .................................................................................. 4 

Section 3 Task Descriptions and Assumptions .................................................................. 7 

Section 4 Costs ................................................................................................................ 14 

Section 5 Qualifications .................................................................................................. 15 

'f.mth 
Work Plan Outline March 12, 2015 



Section 1 Task Options 

The Missouri Department of Natural Resources (MDNR) is charged with preparing, maintaining and 

implementing the Missouri State Water Plan per state statute 640.415 RSMo. Missouri has been successfully 

implementing this plan through studies and projects focused primarily on meeting the water supply 

challenges of the state. Missouri's water resources are vital to the health and economy of the state. As such, 

it is important to maintain a current, comprehensive and contemporary plan for the management of the 

Missouri's water resources. 

Looking at regions ofthe state, key elements for Missouri's next iteration of the State Water Plan involve 

analyzing water demands and defining water supply and availability. Apparent gaps between demand and 

supply will be determined and priorities for infrastructure funding will be defined. Effective public outreach 

and stakeholder involvement are integral to the State Water Plan process to garner public input and support 

as well as constituent buy-in for future infrastructure funding. Public participation is required per state 

statute 640.415 RSMo during development and revision of the State Water Plan. 

Core Elements 
Infrastructure Funding 
Water and Wastewater 

j 
·------~----1 

Figure 1. Core Elements of a State Water Plan 

~~th 1 
Work Plan Outline March 12, 2015 



Missouri Water Plan • Task Options 

Likewise, several state agencies are appointed through the Inter-Agency Task Force (IATF) as established in 

state statute 640.430 RSMo, to advise the MONR during the development and revision of the State Water 

Plan. 

The update to the State Water Plan will set the vision for the water resources management of the state that 

will benefit present and future generations. It ha1s been more than a decade since the last edition ofthe plan. 

This outline includes three options for consideration that reflect varying levels of effort and engagement that 

will address the core elements while meeting state regulations or state requirements. Each option builds 

upon the previous, allowing flexibility in the process to meet the immediate as well as future needs. The 

options offered reflect an 18-, 24-, and 36-month schedule for completion. A final report will be provided at 

the end of 18 months including infrastructure, policy and future study recommendations. 

Option 1 (18 months). A team of MONR staff and COM Smith will be working closely with stakeholders to 

complete the State Water Plan update within 18 months. The plan will leverage available data and studies 

including the northwest and southwest Missouri demand and supply availability data and findings as well as 

the surface water yield Reservoir Operation Study Computer Program (RESOP) studies. Public outreach and 

education will leverage the ongoing watershed planning efforts of Our Missouri Waters (OMW) by reaching 

out to basin stakeholders. Citizens of Missouri have expertise on issues related to their local water resources. 

Involving this expertise during the planning process is essential for sound water policy to meet the needs for 

future generations. The stakeholder engagement in this process occurs at the earliest phases to ensure that 

citizen-experts' concerns, ideas for solutions and priorities are incorporated throughout the planning 

process. 

There is no additional groundwater or hydrologic and hydraulic modeling anticipated in this option. Nor will 

there be decision support models, tools and respective training provided in this 18-month period. COM Smith 

will be in close coordination with MONR staff in identifying data and studies in support of a rapid planning 

process to provide agreed upon water resource management recommendations. 

Pro: Comprehensive planning including core elements, completed quickly with available data and studies, 

methods, approaches and recommendations vetted with MONR staff and best professional judgment, and 

engagement with partner agencies for input and buy in. 

Option 2 (24 months). A team of MONR staff and COM Smith will be working closely with stakeholders to 

complete the State Water Plan update within 24 months. The plan will build upon the available data, studies 

and projects from across the state. An evaluation of available data will be conducted in conjunction with 

OMW to determine gaps that will lend to identifying data needs which may require data collection, surveys 

and possible modeling to support the plan. Stakeholder involvement in forming the technical work groups 

will be incorporated into the process to review methods, approaches and recommendations. In addition to 

the education and outreach achieved by OMWthat is targeted at a basin scale, the plan will educate and 

engage residents and business statewide. 

Pro: Inclusive of all components of Option 1. Additional elements include stream data, vetted with 

stakeholder-based technical work groups, and greater public education and input. 

Option 3 (36 months). A team of MONR staff and COM Smith will be working closely with stakeholders to 

complete the State Water Plan update within 36 months. The plan will employ contemporary tools such as a 

decision support model in identifying priorities, phasing and funding. These decision support tools such as 

IWR-MAIN and STELLA will remain with MONR and necessary training will be provided for future decision 

T.mth 
Work Plan Outline March 12, 2015 

2 



Missouri Water Plan • Task Options 

·- ·-. ·-··--·---------------------- -----+--

making. The three-year process will kickoff with public outreach regarding the current plan and future plan 

needs by region. Stakeholder-based technical work groups will work on the core elements that support 

methods, approaches, findings and recommendat ions. Decision support models will assist in final 

recommendations and costs. Draft find ings will be vetted through a series of statewide meetings. 

Pro: Inclusive of all components of Options 1 and 2. Additional components include employment of tools 

applied for topics such as minimum/instream flows, fits the t imeline of the OMW in its delivery, educates the 

public/constituents for support offuture infrastructure needs. 

CDN!th sm1 

Core Elements 

Water Demand 

Water Availability 

Water Supply 

Gap Analysis 

Water Quality 

Infrastructure 
Funding 

Public and 
Stakeholder 

Involvement 

Apply Existing Data and 
SWdies 
OMW Coordination 

Work Plan Outline March 12, 2015 

..c:: ...., 
c: 
0 
E 
00 
M 
I 

M 
c: 
0 ·-...., 
c.. 
0 

Core Elements Plus 

Water Demand 

Water Avallabillty 

Core Elements Plus Water Supply 

Water Demand Gap Analysis 

Water Avallablllty Water Quality 

Water Supply V) Infrastructure V) 

Gap Analysis ..c:: Funding ..c:: ...., 
Public and 

...., 
Water Quality c: Stakeholder c: 
Infrastructure 0 Funding 0 Involvement 

E Public and E Aquatic Species 

Stakeholder Minlmum/lnstream \.0 
Involvement 

q- Flows 
CV') 

Aquatic Species N Build on Existing Data 

I and Studies I Build on Existing Data 
and Studies OMW Coordination CV') N 
OMW Coordination New Models 

c: Technical Wortc Groups c: 
New Models 0 
Technical Wortc Groups 0 O.Cislon Support Tools ·-·- ...., ...., 

a. c.. 
0 0 

Figure 2. Summary of Each Major Task for the 3 Options 

3 



Section 2 Tasks and Timeline 

TASKS AND Tl MELINE: OPTION 1 

·Evaluate current and projected population and other key demographic 
factors 

· Evaluate the role of water in major economic sectors 
·Analyze the social setting surrounding water management 

· Interview providers and analyze demand studies and population estimates 
·Estimate water resources sustainability and reliability 
·Evaluate raw water providers production, wastewater treatment outfalls, reuse, 

conservation/efficiency, wholesale water contracts and direct flow storage 
· Estimate dimate change projections on demands 

· Identify and evaluate irrigated acreage and crop type 
·Utilize methods for estimating consumptive use, gross diversions, ground

water pumping, return flows, losses and non-beneficial consumptive use 
·Estimate climate variability on crop consumptive use 

1: cu ·Identify and prioritize important resource values/attributes and water 
E resource management end points 
~ ·Identify recreational demands 
~ .5 ·Identify navigational demands 
lu ·Identify power generation demands 
~ · Identify wastewater treatment improvements 
JI ·Impending ammonia standards 

~ 
~ 
.!: 
:E 
6!_ -."An-a'lyz-e'ri-ve'rb'a~sin'h'~"ro'log~y-an'd-va'ri~at~io-ns7in'h-~~ro~lo_g_y"~mc~lu'd~in-g~~-..-r.~-~-~~~~~~ 

climate change 
·Track and account water transfers between uses and between watersheds 
·Estimate aquifer capacity, yield, sustainability and suitability for aquifer 

storage/recharge 
• USGS Ozark Aquifer (2014-17) and PAS studies NWMO, SWMO, RESOP 

·Perform gap analysis 
·Analyze conservation, system efficiencies, water transfers, development of 

unappropriated waters and nonstructural solutions 
·Analyze options to meet identified water management objectives 

·Estimate capital, O&M and periodic costs (planning level •50 percent) 
·Evaluate alternative rates and fee structures, cost-benefit analysis, and 

non-traditional innovative funding strategies. 

·Identify federal and local permit requirements or issues 
·Analyze topographic or geotechnical considerations 
·Identify land use implication or restrictions 
·Identify creative solutions to address local concerns and impact 
·Leverage OMW/Supplement Statewide outreach 

·Applying available data and studies 
·No new H&H or groundwater modeling 
· No Decision Support model/tool 

* IATF Meeting 
.A. Legislative Update 
0 Stakeholder Interviews 

CDMth Sm1 
Work Plan Outline March 12, 2015 

MONTHS 
9 12 15 18 

I I I I 

I I I 

f 1TTT .I: I 

4 



TASKS AND TIMELINE: OPTIONS 2 AND 3 

· Form stakeholder groups by basin 
·Economic analysis on the"value ofwater"indudes a 

public survey 

• Evaluation of conservation on municipal water use, 
gathering data from municipalities on conservation 
trends and analysis of metering information 

• Demand technical work groups (GW, SW, WO) 

· Evolution of crop usage, update irrigated acres by crop type 
·Perform analysis of crop consumptive use 
• Tedlnical work groups (crop, livestock, mining) 

i · Establish broad environmental goals metrics or performance criteria 
I: · Evaluate cold and warm water species, stream reaches affected by 
~ physical or chemical parameters, species of special concern, high 

"""_e value resource areas and water based recreational opportunities 
E · Evaluate methodology minimum I in stream flows and performance 
I ~ ·Quantify recreation, navigation and power generation demands 

I~ j~. 3-0-3d~i-m-pa-ire~d~w-at-ers~~~~~~~~~~~---,..,. 

~ ·List total maximum daily loads (TMDLs) 
, Ol:I • Identify wastewater treatment improvements 
I~ • Perform water quality modeling 
~ • Incorporate stormwater point source 

~-::--:-~--:-:--:-~~-:-:-:--:-:~;--~~~---,,_.~~ 

• Develop statewide surface wateryield model and 
evaluate water storage 

• Evaluate water quality statewide 
• Develop load allocation models 
• Develop statewide groundwater model for each 

groundwater basin 

· Identify infrastructure needs to meet water supply 
gaps for municipal, industrial, agricultural and 
environmental 

• Create infrastructure work groups 
·Analyze conjunctive use, ecological restoration 

· Provide a detailed level of costing (' 25 percent level) 
• Evaluate legislative initiatives for funding 

• Expand the public input process to hold basin meetings 
throughoutthe state 

• Leverage OMW (years 3, 4, S} 
·Statewide outreach 

- Build upon available data and studies 
- Identify gaps in data 
- Develop appropriate models 

T.Mth 
Work Plan Outline March 12, 2015 

* IATF Meeting 
A. Legislative Update 
0 Stakeholder Interviews 

MONTHS 
9 12 15 18 21 24 27 30 33 36 

l ! 

I I I I I I l I I I 

' j 
I I I I 

- L 

. I . 
I I I 
11 I 

I 
I I I I 

I I 

I I I 
I 11 ! I 

I I I I I I 

I I I I I I I I I ! I I I 

I I 

I 
\ I ' I ! 1 1 i ! I 

Basil'\ Meetings 

11 

LEGEND 
Option 1 Tasks and Schedule D 

Option 2 and 3 Tasks [::! 

5 



TASKS ANDTIMELINE: OPTIONS 1, 2 AND 3 

<f.mth 

* IATF Meeting 
Legislative Update 

D Stakeholder Interviews 

Work Plan Outline March 12, 2015 

1 11 1 1 

l I I I 

I 
I Basi11 Mee in s 

LEGEND 
Option 1 Tasks D 
and Schedule 

Option 2 and 3 Tasks E::] 

6 



CDMth Sm1 

The overall objective for all tasks will be to develop a common technical platform for the state. 

A common technical platform will be useful for building consensus and comparing needs across 

the state. All tasks will be executed at the designated planning level for the state, i.e., five 

planning regions. 

Assumptions: 

Option 1: 
• Planning horizon will be 2060 for the State Water Plan. 

• Planning regions will mirror the five planning regions from the previous State Water 

Plan. 

• Region descriptions and institutional setting (e.g., mission, mandates, laws and 

policies) will be migrated forward from the previous State Water Plan. 

Options 2/3: 
• The scope ofthe effort will be expanded particularly in the areas of demand 

projection, groundwater availability, infrastructure and stakeholder involvement. 

• Planning regions may be defined differently (e.g., based on watersheds) or 

expanded beyond the five planning regions from the previous State Water Plan. 

• Basin descriptions and institutional setting will be revised to include information 

that represent changed conditions with respect to water management in 2015. 

Task 1 Evaluate Demographics, Economics and Trends 
The evaluation of economic, demographic and social trends for a region begin with a clear 

understanding of what issues, questions and objectives the state is seeking to answer with 

these data. There will be a consideration of past, current and future growth projections; both 

economic and population. These are drivers of sector water demand projections. 

Assumptions: 

Option 1: 

• The Missouri Census Data Center and the Office of Administration's state 

demographer will provide population projections to 2030. MDNR will extrapolate 

population projections to 2060 as were completed for southwest Missouri. 

Options 2/3: 
• The state demographer will provide population projections to 2030. CDM Smith will 

extrapolate population projections to 2060 at the county level. These projections 

will be available by county. 

Work Plan Outline March 12, 2015 

7 



Missouri Water Plan • Task Descriptions and Assumptions 

Task 2 Quantify Consumptive Demands 
Water use data must be gathered from available sources including MDNR's· Major Water User database, U.S. 

Geological Survey (USGS) reports, and the Public Water Supply Census. Several methodologies will be looked 

at to determine municipal and industrial demands. Gallons per capita or projections by sector applying 

employment will depend upon the available data and purpose. Stakeholders may contribute in support of 

methods applied and accepting the findings. 

Assumptions: 

Option 1: 

• County-wide gallons per capita per day (gpcd) will be established based upon the Public Water 

Supply (PWS) Census production values and population served. Self-supplied residential will be 

based upon population by county minus PWS population served multiplied by per capita water 

use. Self-supplied nonresidential water use will be obtained from MDNR's Major Water User 

database and USGS reports. 

Options 2/3: 

County-wide gallons per capita per day (gpcd) will be established as data are available from 

water providers. An extensive analysis of conservation savings will be performed. 

• Demand projections for each of the water use sectors defined in the MDNR's 1994 Water Use in 

Missouri report will be completed on a county basis. 

Task 3 Estimate Agricultural Demands 
Agricultural demands consist primarily of crop irrigation, livestock watering and aquaculture. Acres by crop 

type and number of livestock are readily available in the USDA's Census of Agricultural data. Future 

projections of the mix of crop type, head of livestock, and water use by type are the key drivers in 

determining agricultural demands. Understanding the latest practices and technologies are key when making 

these determinations. 

Assumptions: 

Option 1: 
• Irrigated acres by crop type, livestock and aquaculture counts are available from USDA's Census 

of Agriculture. USGS Water Use reports along with University of Missouri Extension data can be 

used to estimate water use per head and irrigated acre by crop type, respectively. Projections for 

agriculture use would be based on historic trends. 

Options 2/3: 

CDNlth Sm1 

• Agriculture acres by crop type are available, an analysis of crop consumptive use is performed 

including climate variability impacts on crop consumptive use. 

• Stakeholders from each agricultural demand sector may contribute in support of methods 

applied and accepting the findings. 

Work Plan Outline March 12, 2015 

8 



Missouri Water Plan • Task Descriptions and Assumpt ions 

Task 4 Environmental, Recreational and Navigational Water Demands 
Non-consumptive water demands are considered recreational, navigational, environmental and power 

utilities. These demand sectors are important economic drivers in Missouri. The State Water Plan would set 

priorities and balance the impacts offuture consumptive demands with the non-consumptive demands. The 

State Water Plan would set future study of flows required for recreation, navigation and the environment. 

Power generation, both hydropower and thermal, are also large users of water for turbine generation and 

cooling water. User groups are essential to understanding and balancing these demands. 

Assumptions: 

Option 1: 
• Demands for non-consumptive use will be projected at the same use as today. For example, 

thermal power projections based upon the Department of Energy's Energy Information Agency's 

projections by fuel type for reference, high, low may be applied for demand estimates. 

• Environmental and recreational demands will be identified. 

Options 2/3: 
• Environmental attributes will be identified by stakeholders in each planning area. These 

attributes can be used to determine environmental priorities for flows and project priorities. A 

methodology and tools for developing in-stream flows will be established. 

Task 5 Water Quality and Improvements 
Water quality is critical to the health and economy of Missouri for current and future generations. Water 

quality is important for potable water, end of the pipe wastewater, and stormwater discharges. Water quality 

plays a vital part of the biological integrity and diversity of the state's water systems and as such contributes 

greatly to recreational opportunities. There are existing regulatory programs and processes for waterways 

that are included on the 303d list or those that have an approved total maximum daily loads (TMDLs) that 

work outside the State Water Plan. The plan process will assist in identifying.water quality needs associated 

with ammonia. 

Assumptions: 

Option 1: 
• Water and wastewater treatment facility information is available from the MDNR's violations 

database and the Missouri Clean Water Information System (MoCWIS). 

• Water quality improvements with respect to ammonia will be identified. 

Option 2/3: 

CDM.th Smt 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Include 303d lists and TMDL information to inform the decision making process . 

Nonpoint Source, watershed restoration projects and monitoring data is available; in 

coordination with OMW. 

Water quality needs will be expanded beyond ammonia to include nutrients . 

Water quality modeling will be performed to evaluate assimilative capacity and wastewater 

· upgrades. 

Work Plan Outline March 12, 2015 

9 



Missouri Water Plan • Task Descriptions and Assumptions 

• Groundwater quality data will be available from MDNR's groundwater monitoring network and 

USGS. 

Task 6 Analyze Surface and Groundwater Hydrology and Availability 
Evaluation of surface and groundwater sources may include collection of data from a variety of sources 

including the state, USGS and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE). The state has completed stream and 

reservoir firm yield studies for at risk water supplies in Missouri. The studies examine the drought of record 

firm yields and are published in the Missouri Water Supply Study (RESOP), June 2011. 

The state may find that additional water availability analyses are required to support decision-making related 

to the water supplies to serve projected water needs. As the state continues to focus on potential gaps in 

water supply for future demands and potential means to serve those gaps, the state may find that additional 

water availability estimates should be prepared. 

Assumptions: 

Option 1: 
• 

• 

• 

Water treatment facility information is available from MDNR's Safe Drinking Water Intended Use 

Plan (IUP). 

Surface water supply availability will be determined using USG~'s gage data. Availability will be 

determined using the three return intervals to be determined by MDNR for average, wet and dry 

conditions. One climate scenario will be included. 

Reservoir water availability will be determined using the RESOP study to evaluate yield. USACE 

reservoirs will also be evaluated for storage and to evaluate reallocation. 

• Groundwater availability will be assessed with existing groundwater data including the MDNR's 

well data monitoring network. 

Options 2/3: 
• Three climate variability scenarios (hot/dry, central tendency and warm/wet) and a scenario 

based on historic conditions for temperature and precipitation will be evaluated for the 2060 

planning horizon. 

• Reservoir water availability will be determined using the RESOP study to evaluate renewal 

storage. USACE reservoirs will also be evaluated for storage and to evaluate reallocation. 

Reservoir optimization modeling may be used to determine reallocation volumes. 

• Groundwater availability will be determined from two existing groundwater models and 

additional modeling in areas where groundwater supplies appear to be limited as indicated by 

historical use (declining water levels) or quality. 

• Well data will be provided by MDNR for areas where groundwater is declining. 

Task 7 Evaluate and Analyze Methods to Meet Needs 
One of the key tenants of state water planning is the principle of identifying a broad range of supply and 

demand management strategies, as well as inclusion of a complete set of water use sectors. At the same 

time, in some cases, existing planning efforts have identified the most effective and implementable 

Work Plan Outline March 12, 2015 

10 



Missouri Water Plan • Task Descriptions and Assumptions 

strategies. The plan will start with the principal of maximizing existing planning efforts to help ensure that 

local planning initiatives are respected, to promote efficiency and buy-in to the state planning effort, and 

reduce duplication of efforts. In some cases, existing, permitted and planned projects/capacity can meet all 

or a portion of long-term needs. The remaining unmet need or gap between supply and demand then 

becomes the principle focus of the decision-making process. 

Projected demands will be compared to existing projects identified for each basin. This will allow for 

identification of infrastructure gaps. This gap analysis is essential, as it identifies the current and future needs 

for new water supply projects and management options. 

The overall purpose of this task is the development and selection of a series of projects and strategies for 

addressing specific current or future water supply shortfalls and water and wastewater quality demands. 

Examples of strategies to be analyzed may include storage and conveyance infrastructure, treatment supply 

augmentation, existing supply management (e.g., reuse, USACE reservoir reallocation) and demand 

management (e.g., conservation and drought restrictions). Implementation of projects to meet 

environmental, recreational, navigational and power will also be identified in this task. 

Assumptions: 

Option 1: 

<if rm th 

• Information on planned infrastructure projects will come from a variety of sources. This would 

include a survey of water and wastewater providers (response rate for this could be in the 30 to 

50 percent range), requesting data from: 

The Missouri Water and Wastewater Review Committee 

Missouri State Revolving Fund 

U.S. Department of Agriculture Rural Development 

Community Block Development Grant Program 

Contacting large wholesale potable water and wastewater utilities in the state 

• Gap analysis for municipal and industrial will be conducted to determine an infrastructure gap. 

This will be done by analyzing demands and subtracting projects identified by water providers. 

• Gap analysis for other demand sectors will include agriculture, navigation, recreation and 

environment. 

• In addition to projects, broad strategies for water supply will be evaluated. These strategies 

include: 

Conservation 

Reuse 

New surface water supply development 

Additional pumping 

Reservoir storage, firm yield and reallocation 

Work Plan Outline March 12, 2015 

11 



Missouri Water Plan • Task Descriptions and Assumptions 

Options 2/3: 

• Municipal and industrial infrastructure project lists will be based on planned projects from water 

and wastewater service providers. These lists will be compiled frorn a survey of water and 

wastewater providers. 

The appropriate strategies will be evaluated for each of the planning areas. Appropriate strategies for each 

planning area will be informed by stakeholders and determined by the MDNR. 

Task 8 Analyze Financials and Alternative Funding 
As a result of the analysis of demands, constraints and opportunities; both a current and future set of 

implementation strategies and associated infrastructure costs can be projected for the future. MDNR's State 

Revolving Fund (SRF) program would be reviewed and identify shortfalls in future funding. These are 

reconnaissance-level estimates (plus or minus 50 percent). Nonfinancial considerations for prioritization 

should be taken into account, for instance recreational benefits. 

Assumptions: 

Option 1: 

• Costs will be evaluated for e~ch of the five planning regions including the general location, 

infrastructure needed to implement, and planning-level costs at plus or minus 50 percent level 

contingency. 

Options 2/3: 

• Objectives and performance measure will be determined from a broad stakeholder process. 

Task 9 Develop Options to Address Local Concerns and Impact 
Options to address local concerns will be developed and should include the following considerations: develop 

and evaluate water and wastewater supply projects and options consisting of structural and nonstructural 

measures that appear to be feasible as well as politically and socially acceptable; formulate water supply and 

wastewater options for the implementation of the most promising alternatives in each region; and build 

consensus among all parties to the study process as to which alternatives should be pursued for 

implementation. 

• Objectives 
• Performance 

Measures 

Prepare 
Alternatives 

The above steps can be accomplished through a facilitated, collaborative, consensus-based stakeholder 

process or through a more systematic analysis process. Both processes require developing a more clear 

understanding of the interrelationships among individual water supply options, both existing and new, 

requiring the entire water system be examined in a comprehensive fashion. If a more systematic analysis 

approach is preferred, a first step in evaluating water solutions is to develop comprehensive alternatives that 

represent combinations of supply strategies. 

CD,., th Sm1 
Work Plan Outline March 12, 2015 

12 



Missouri Water Plan • Task Descriptions and Assumptions 

Assumptions: 

Option 1: 

• Objectives and performance measures will be determined from the interview process. 

Task 10 Final Report 
An Executive Summary and final report will be prepared. Each step will be included in separate sections. All 

database and documentation used will be provided. 

Task 11 Public and Stakeholder Interaction 
Citizens of Missouri are experts about their local water resources. They know the resources best. This 

innovative approach to stakeholder engagement outlined below builds upon recent academic research 

in effective public participation to listen to these experts first. From the beginning of the planning 

process, it engages, documents and incorporates citizens' water expertise to ensure current and 

anticipated concerns, ideas for solutions, and priorities inform and shape the entire planning effort. 

Social and political acceptance within regions and local jurisdictions is an outcome of successful public 

engagement. Successful engagement acknowledges, listens to, and incorporates the water expertise of 

Missourians into water planning. Public and stakeholder engagement within this process will leverage 

the ~ngoing watershed planning efforts of OMWto ensure sound and coordinated outreach. Statewide 

public outreach and education is a fundamental part of the State Water Plan process to gain insight and 

input and garner constituent support for future funding. 

Given the shared nature of the resource and naturally competing interests in the State Water Plan, 

collaboration will be paramount in successfully completing the plan. 

Assumptions: 

Option 1: 

• Interview up to 60 to 80 representatives and leaders within Missouri's water co~munity to 

define water values, current priorities, anticipated concerns and planning recommendations. 

• Stakeholder involvement will focus on outreach to leverage the capacities of existing stakeholder 

groups and partnerships such as OMW and existing commissions and committees. 

• Contribute content to the MDNR to include on the Web, newsletter, press release, public service 

announcement and speaker's bureaus. 

• Public outreach support will include 15 meetings during 18 months. 

Option 2/3: 
• Two statewide stakeholder work groups will be formed to provide information and develop 

consensus on the approach, data sources and results for the demand and water availability. 

Both the demand and water availability work groups are anticipated to meet two times each to 

review the proposed approach and data and to review the findings for a total of four statewide 
meetings. 

• Subgroups of the statewide demand and water availability work groups are expected to form 

and will meet on an ad-hoc basis. 

Cf.mth 13 
Work Plan Outline March 12, 2015 



Section 4 Costs 

The following is a budget guideline by task for Option 1, ifthe MDNR chooses to move forward with the 

scope of services described in Section 3. Depending on budget and availabilify, CDM Smith can revisit the 

assumptions with the MDNR to meet its needs. 

Task Description Total 
Taskl Evaluate Demographics, Economics and Trends $ 75,000 

Task2 Quantify Consumptive Demands $ 150,000 

Task3 Estimate Agricultural Demands $ 52,000 

Task4 Environmental, Recreational and Navigational Water Demands $ 52,000 

Tasks Water Quality and Improvements $ 349,000 

Task6 Analyze Surface and Groundwater Hydrology and Availability $ 224,000 

Task7 Evaluate and Analyze Methods to Meet Needs $ 376,000 

Tasks Analyze Financials and Alternative Funding $ 203,000 

Task9 Develop Options to Address Local Concerns and Impacts $ 216,000 

TasklO Final Report $ 103,000 

Taskll Stakeholder Involvement $ 200,000 

Total $ 2,000,000 

Note: These preliminary costs estimates do not include the USACE overhead or other cont ributive costs to the 
project, if funded through the Planning Assistance to States Program. 

As demonstrated in CDM Smith's statewide planning qualifications (Section S), the range of issues and 
approaches can vary greatly in support of a collaborative, comprehensive and contemporary water plan 
process. COM Smith estimates that in order to complete the items listed as assumptions for Options 2/3 
above, the total project cost could range from $2 to $4 million allowing 2 to 3 years to complete. 

'i.'lmth 
Work Plan Outline March 12, 2015 

14 



Section 5 Qualifications 

About CDM Smith 
COM Smith is a consulting, engineering, construction and operations firm delivering exceptional service to 

public and private clients worldwide. An employee-owned corporation with over $1 billion in annual 

revenues and a multidisciplinary staff of nearly 6,000 employees working from 120+ offices worldwide, we 

take pride in the freedom to put our clients first and apply our minds and passions to imagine and create 

sustainable solutions. 

COM Smith maintains the size, stability and resources to successfully undertake a diverse range of projects 

with a local staff of 45 employees. 

Planning for Water 
Water is among our most precious and strained resources-making statewide water resource planning of 

critical importance. Almost by definition, statewide planning often strains the traditional boundaries and 

takes a more comprehensive look at water use sectors not inherent in traditional water resource planning. 

Statewide plans at their core typically seek to establish a vision for sustaining and enhancing the social and 

economic conditions of the state and its various regions. 

At COM Smith, we have applied innovation to integrated resources planning, the developed system models 

and decision support tools, and have recent experience with incorporating climate change into decision

making efforts. In Oklahoma, Colorado, Georgia, California, Texas, West Virginia, Arkansas, South Carolina 

and IRPs in 15 states, the COM Smith has facilitated and successfully completed water resource plans that 

focus on a collaborative and consensus-driven process. In addition, we have completed an assessment of 

state planning for the USACE. The COM Smith Team's experience in statewide planning is unmatched. 

COM Smith has been supporting supply studies in concert with the MONR and the USACE in both Northwest 

and Southwest Missouri over the past 5 years. These studies have evaluated source water supplies, USACE 

reservoir reallocation considerations and infrastructure needs, costs, and funding. Collectively, these studies 

continue to support the implementation of Missouri's State Water Plan. 

T.Mth 
Work Plan Outline March 12, 2015 

15 



Missouri Water Plan • Qualifications 

UNPARALLELED STATEWIDE PLANNING EXPERTISE 
..._ OKLAHOMA the last eight years, COM Smith completed 
... ($3 m//llon) the Statewide Water Supply Initiative (SWSI) 1, 

generating a defensible and balanced fore
cast of agriculture Irrigation water use for the 
entire state of Arkansas, includlng the Intense 
water using area of the Delta. The forecast 
included detailed statistical modeling of 
Irrigated acres based on historical trends and 
crop and county specific water application 
rates. COM Smith communicated the working 
methodology to a diverse group of stake
holders and incorporated their qualitative 
knowledge Into the final statistical model. 

In Oklahoma, our successful statewide plan- SWSI 2, SWSI 2010, Basin Needs Assessments. 
nlng effort focused on quantifying demands, In ad~ltlon!.~e are currently completing 
supply and legal and physical supply gaps, the Basin Roundtable Basin Reports, live 
Improving planning capacity of the state and Annual Reports for the IBCC, assisted the 
local utilities via modeling and analytical tool CWCB in numerous planning efforts to 
development and robust public outreach. Integrate this technical work Into each of 
With 82 major watersheds and a critical the CWCB sections as well as supporting the 
dependence on the Ogallala aquifer the COM agencies Water Supply Planning section. 

and Oklahoma Water Resources Board (OWRB) ($6 million) WEST VIRGINIA 

Smith Team worked closely with the USACE • GEORGIA 

under a unique funding and political partner- COM Smith worked with Georgia ($2 million) 
ship. Our leadership and technical support to completed its first statewide water COM Smith was recently 
provided the detailed quantification of avail- development and conservation plan. This selected to provide a statewide 

water plan for the State of West Virginia. 
The plan will include water supply 
demand, water quallty, water modeling, 
shortage analysis and gap alternatives. 

able resources and also Identified critical infra- regionally-focused planning process required 
structure needs though detailed outreach accommodation of Georgia Reasonable 
to local utilities. This provided the USACE Riparian Use Laws and the need to look 
and OWRB an understanding of resource, more closely at the sustainability of surface 
policy and legal constraints/limitations. and groundwater use and development SOUTH CAROLINA 

($1 mil/Ion) COLORADO • ARKANSAS 
($2.7 ml/llon for the ($3 ml/I/on over 2 years) . 
first phase;1 O years, COM Smith worked closely with 

COM Smith was recently selected 
to provide a statewide modeling platform 
for South Carollna using the SWAM model. $1·2 mlfllon per year) the Arkansas Natural Resource Commission 

In Colorado, COM Smith has completed the and various stakeholders to update the state 
most comprehensive analysis of water supply water plan. COM Smith was responsible for 
and resource needs In the state's history. Over 

INDUSTRY LEADER in INTEGRATED WATER RESOURCES MANAGEMENT • Nationally, COM Smith has prepared 

more than 40 Integrated resources 

plans and state and regional water 
Wl!.!!!!!ll!!!! plans involving stakeholder collabo-
•camll'llglC 

SotnlWll• • New Ycrt Ciy ration and decision making. These 
Falln emn-~1 

"'1fllmll • Chesl•CclU'ity plans enjoyed broad stake-
• ear Arw Waler Agn:ias • Plliade!Pia WO 

holder support, provided • llaricla lllMuclluMtla and 

• BiitaCOll'lly Ntw HpDlhl11 
a framework for compre-

• CALFED • M<rtCCl!lSd~ 
• GilnP/ lllr..llllrt henslve water resources 
• City al LDSAngllos • SllllWill Pllnnq ~ 

• SinaFe Wt!! ytrplo!I management and led to • MWD al So. Cllilarria 
• r.uicipll WD d Onl1gt ~ 

•StawideWlttrPlan 

• Olay Wallr Oistric:t • SlallWidl WaMr llfmll l!oy!I! Cn!lnl project implementation 
• RlllChoCllifari1 WD s..,py lnlillivt • TRWD • 5tlllwlllt Watw Plan 

and funding. Tools utilized 
• City dSml Diego • ScUh Mitro Wiiier • Cilyol Oalu/HOR &l!loHI. 

!!!I!! 
• s., .lc*ll*' CclU'lty SUpplyAullarily • Wichi11Flh 

' Sllllwidl W- Plan 
• AlllrQ Reglanll Ctllll'li9lkft to develop decisions 

• Sina Cllll V'illllf WD • Caslle Pinls Haith • Btamrll Collnty 
Centnl Mlnsa9 Wlllt 

• ACT/ACl'Sludr 
• Sina Fe ltrigatlorl Disbicl MalrvOISldct • MntlOn Oil Corrc>any • Gealslla C-111 Sludr included IWR-MAIN, 
• SAWPA • T01111dC111lllRoct • l.AlglN ,... ~ • Gtorgil Wlllr Dtwlopment 

STELLA, and SWAM . • SdllloCOll'lly • City al NCl1h;llnn • BllZCI Rlv•Aulhality • Okllhornl~ and ConMMlion Plln 

&lil!ID! lllDla • EIPaso •Wll•Pllrl .El9ll9 
• Nogales • SiriAntorio • Edmond • uu Ol<-hobM 

• KlrlslS Wmr Ollce • BECC Bi -Nltianal Waler Plan • Norman Prcjad 

.lltU R-*Sildy • TRWD/Dallas Lake Plllsllne • OOllloml City Wllw • DeytonaBelch 
• T .... _ Califonia 

Miuml!I. Wiier SUpply Syallm lnlegrllion • UlllUnT1111I • Water Aul!lortty al 

• Wlllr SUpply SUly • AqulWalllr&,w'tCClp. Slilnler 
Valusil 

• West Palm llllCl1 

'i.':Mth 
Work Plan Outline March 12, 2015 

16 



Missouri Water Plan • Qualifications 

Team Member/Role Biographical Summary 

Mike Beezhold, 
Project Manager 

Sue Morea, 
Senior Technical 
Specialist 

Pat O'Neill, P.E., 
Infrastructure 
Planning 

Sarah Stewart, P.E., 
Water and 
Wastewater 

Tim Feather, PhD., 

USACE Liaison 

Mark McCluskey, 

Supply Availability 

Bill Davis, 

Demands 

Becky Dunavant, 

Water Quality 

'i.'mith 

Mr. Beezhold is a senior planner with over 20 years of water resources planning 
experience. Mike has been the Project Manager for the Southwest Missouri Water 
Resources Studies Phases I, II and Ill and the ongoing Stockton Lake Reallocation 
Study (2011- Present). Mike also served as task manager for the Arkansas 
Statewide Water Plan. 

Ms. Morea offers the MDNR 28 years of water supply planning and water quality 
experience. Sue Morea is CDM Smith's statewide planning expert and has served 
as program manager and project director for the following statewide water plans 
Colorado, Georgia, Arkansas, Oklahoma, and South Carolina. 

Mr. O'Neill brings nearly 25 years of infrastructure planning and design experience 

including water treatment and distribution, wastewater treatment and collection, 

and water resources management. Pat's primary focus has been working with 

various municipalities and utilities located across Missouri, Kansas, Iowa, and 

Nebraska to develop infrastructure solutions, address regulatory requirements, 
and identify funding alternatives. 

Ms. Stewart is an environmental engineer with 13 years of experience with 
planning and design for both water and wastewater utilities, site-civil design; 
wastewater collection systems and treatment; water and wastewater pump 
stations; and, potable water treatment, distribution and storage design. Sarah has 
recently served as the Project Manager for the Northwest Missouri Water Supply 
and Alternatives studies. 

Dr. Feather's focus has been on the development of interdisciplinary solutions to 
water supply challenges. Tim compiled a summary of the state water planning for 
all 50 states that was published by the American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE) 
Environmental and Water Resources Institute. He then led a similar initiative for 
the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, where each state was interviewed as part of the 
summary process. These state water summaries are found at http://building
collaboration-for-water.org/. 

Mr. McCluskey has over 15 years of experience in groundwater and hydrologic 

modeling, water supply, and water rights. Mark was the Project Engineer for the 

water supply aspects ofthe following statewide water plans; Colorado, Arkansas, 

and Oklahoma. 

Mr. Davis specializes in conducting water demand ~nalyses, developing water use 

forecasts, evaluating water conservation programs and incorporating these 

analytical components into State Planning. Bill served as the Task Manager for the 

Oklahoma, Colorado, and Georgia Statewide demand forecasts. 

Ms. Dunavant has over 15 years of experience as an environmental scientist, 

specializing in water quality and water supply planning projects. Becky served as 

the Project Manager for TMDL Development for the Illinois Environmental 

Protection Agency. Becky served as task leader for the environmental water 

demands for Colorado, Oklahoma, and Arkansas. 

Work Plan Outline March 12, 2015 

17 



Bill Mullican, 

Funding 

Damon M. Hall, 

PhD., 

Stakeholder 

Involvement 

Missouri Water Plan • Qualifications 

In Mr. Mullican's over 30 years, Bill has had extensive interaction with the 

technical community, governmental entities at the local, state, and federal levels, 

stakeholders, and general public and provided invited testimony to the United 

States Congress on four occasions and on over 25 occasions to the Texas 

Legislature:-Bill served as Deputy Executive Administrative for Water and Science 

Conservation, Texas Water Development Board 1997-2008. 

Damon M. Hall, Ph.D. is an Assistant Professor in the Center for Sustainability, a 

graduate-degree granting research institute, at Saint Louis University in St. Louis, 

Missouri. Recently, Dr. Hall designed, conducted, and analyzed citizen engagement 

for the Scoping Phase for the Yellowstone River Basin's 2015 Montana State Water 

Plan sponsored by the Montana Department of Natural Resources and 

Conservation. More than 200 basin-wide water users participated in this phase 

within the Yellowstone Basin. 

Full resumes available upon request. 

CDMth sm1 
Work Plan Outline March 12, 2015 

18 



CDM 
Smllh® 

cdmsmith.com 

-



. ... 

Ambient Water-Quality Monitoring in Missouri 
- Emitt C. Witt, ///and John Ford 

Recreational use, North Fork River, Mis
souri. 

Agricultural use, Spring Creek Basin, 
Missouri {Photograph courtesy of 
Rebecca Inman, U.S. Geological Sur
vey) . 

Urban runoff, Kansas City, Missouri 
{Photograph courtesy of Don Wilkison, 
U.S. Geological Survey). 

U.S. Geologica l Survey 
U.S. D epartment of the Interior 

Introduction 

During the last 31 years, the Mis
souri Department of Natural Resources 
(MoDNR) and the U.S. Geological Sur
vey (USGS) have cooperated on a pro
gram to monitor the quality of the State's 
streams, springs, and rivers (hereafter 
referred to as surface water). This pro
gram is referred to as the Ambient 
Water-Quality Monitoring Network 
(hereafter referred to as Ambient Net
work) and was established to detect 
changes and determine trends in the 
quality of Missouri 's streams and to pro
vide the regulatory community with 
baseline data needed to enforce environ
mental law. 

Although the level of funding and 
the number of monitoring stations have 
changed with time, the program has 
always focused on monitoring the 
present status of the State's surface water 
by using the most representative data
collection techniques and quality
assured laboratory procedures. Missouri 
has more than 21 ,978 miles ofrivers that 
support recreation, agriculture, industry, 
transportation, and public utilities . The 
1998 Missouri Water-Quality Report, 
published by the MoDNR, identified 
approximately 10,000 stream miles that 
are adversely affected by various physi
cal changes or chemical contaminants. 
Because nearly one-half of the surface
water resources in Missouri are currently 
(2001) being affected, a major effort is 
needed to maintain the remaining 
resources and to improve the affected 
resources. 

Urbanization , intensive agricul
ture, recreation , and the manufacturing 
industry are affecting water quality 

throughout the United States. In the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency's 
(USEPA) 1998 report to Congress, 35 
percent of the assessed streams and riv
ers in the United States are impaired 
beyond their ability to support desig
nated uses (U.S. Environmental Protec
tion Agency, 1999; 2000). Uses typically 
include drinking water, aquatic life sup
port, fish consumption, recreational con
tact, and agriculture. In Missouri, nearly 
one-third of the surface water in the 
north and western regions support less 
than 20 percent of the designated uses. 
Also, more than 5 percent of aquatic spe
cies are at risk within the southeastern 
and southwestern regions (U .S. Environ
mental Protection Agency, 1998). 

Missouri's population grew by 
more than 7 percent from 1980 to 1990 
and by another 6 .3 percent from 1990 to 
1998 (U.S . Census Bureau, 1999). This 
growth has a substantial effect on Mis
souri's water resources. For example, the 
city of Springfield, although located over 
a substantial potable aquifer, must also 
use surface water from the James River 
and three reservoirs on the Sac and Little 
Sac Rivers to meet the city 's demand for 
drinking water. The population increase 
in the city of Nevada has placed such a 
demand on the ground-water supply that 
salinewater is being pumped from the 
deeper aquifer to the shallow aquifer that 
has supplied the water for the city. 

The future of Missouri is linked to 
the future quality of its water resources. 
Without an adequate water supply, popu
lation growth will be limited, agriculture 
will be hampered, and the recreational 
industry will suffer. Therefore, a system 
that monitors the changing quality of the 
surface-water resources is necessary, and 

USGS Fact Sheet 062- 0 I 
May 2001 



the Ambient Network has and will con
tinue to serve this purpose in Missouri . 

The Network 

Ambient water-quality monitoring 
began in Missouri in 1969 with 18 sam
pling stations. By 1979 the network had 
increased by only two stations. From 
1980 to 1986, the network increased to 
41 stations. However, by 1991 funding 
had been reduced so that only 5 stations 
remained in the network. Realizing the 
need for an increase in baseline data, the 
MoDNR began reestablishing the net
work in 1993, and by the end of 1994, 34 
stations had been added to the network. 
In October 1999, funds were allocated 
for an additional 24 stations, and Federal 
funds became available to support 2 
more stations, which increased the total 
network to 65 stations (fig. I). 

physiographic province or aquatic 
ecoregion. 

2. Surface waters with substantial land
use change occurring within their 
drainage basin, such as those 
affected by growing industry, 
expanding or changing-agricultural 
practices, and urban development. 

3. Surface waters with known -water
quality concerns, such as those with 
point source inputs of contami
nants. 

4. Surface waters listed in the Missouri 
Water-Quality Standards as 'Out
standing Natural Resource Waters' . 

5. Surface waters of special interest 
requiring the establishment of an -
initial data set. 

Figure 1. Location of stations in the Ambient Water-Quality 
Monitoring Network. 

A committee composed of repre
sentatives from the MoDNR and the 
USGS is responsible for the selection of 
stations for the Ambient Network . Crite
ria for inclusion in the network are: 

I . Moderate size surface waters that rep
resent typical land use in a specific 

The Ambient Network is a large 
effort that requires substantial financial 
support to operate. Labor associated with 
data collection and laboratory costs 
account for more than 51 and 18 percent 
of the total funding. The remaining 
expenses include vehicle rental, over-

night travel, miscellaneous supply pur
chases, and sample shipping. 

The Ambient Network is supported 
by three major sources offunding. The 
first is from a share of the funds the State 
collects from judgements and settle
ments of water pollution enforcement 
cases, the second is from the USGS 
cooperative program, and the third is the 
Clean Water Act funding from the 
USEPA. These funds support a group of 
eight field technicians and one quality
assurance officer who sample and vali
date data collected from Missouri's sur
face waters. 

Sample Collection 

Samples are collected at stations in 
the network at varying frequencies. Of 
the 65 stations in the Ambient Network, 
1 is sampled 4 times per year, 38 are 
sampled 6 times, 3 are sampled 9 times, 
and the remaining 23 are sampled 12 
times. Sampling frequency is determined 
by a number of factors that include the 
drainage basin size, potential effects 
from cultural activity, history of chemi
cal change, the need for short-term data, 
and cost. Lower sampling frequency 
helps to reduce the cost of the overall 
network by lowering costs for each sta
tion. With lower costs per station, more 
stations can be added to the network and 
provide wider coverage of the State's 
stream resources with a constant level of 
funding. 

Methods used by the USGS for col
lecting representative water-quality sam
ples are presented in detail in several 
publications (Ward and Harr, 1990; 
Wilde and others, 1998). In summary, 
there are two techniques to collect sam
ples from a stream, the Equal Width 
Increment (EWl) and the Equal Dis
charge Increment (EDT). The EWI 
method requires the collection of sub
samples within a cross section of the 
stream at equal distances apart (fig. 2). 
This method typically is used for streams 
with relatively even depth and flow. 
Water depths between sampling subsec
tions generally do not vary by more than 
I 0 percent. 



The EDI method is based on equal 
discharge for each cross section of the 
river. More samples are collected in the 
deeper part of the river channel where 
most of the water is flowing (fig. 2). The 
EDI method is used for large rivers 
where shipping channels have deepened 
the streambed near its center. The EDI 
method is exclusively used for sample 
·collection at Mississippi and Missouri 
River stations. 

111111111111 
Equal Width Increment 

1111111111· 
Equal Discharge Increment 

Figure 2. Methods for collecting samples in 
a cross section of a stream with shallow even 

. flow and deep channelized flow. 

Sample collection using either of 
the methods requires the use of a sam
pling device that maintains the represen
tative chemistry of the water and collects 
a representative parcel of water. Because 
materials used to construct sampling 
equipment can directly affect sample 
chemistry, relatively inert materials are 
used that will not contribute to or remove 
constituents from the sample. The mate
rial currently used is Teflon 1• 

A sampler also must collect a rep
resentative volume of water within a 
subsection without any flow-disturbing 
effects from the body of the sampler. 
Water flowing into the sampler must rep
resent the water within the area of the 
sampler opening. The term given to such 
a sampling device is 'isokinetic sam
pler'. Two types of Teflon isokinetic 
samplers are used in the Ambient Net
work: the 0-77, modified for use with a 

1Thc use of brand names in this fact sheet is 
for identification purposes only and docs not con

stitute endorsement by the U.S . Geological Survey. 

Teflon bag (collapsible bag sampler) and 
the DH-81 hand-held sampler. The col
lapsible bag sampler typically is used 
where flow and depth conditions are too 
extreme to wade within the cross section. 
This sampler is suspended by a cable 
from either a bridge deck or a boat and 
lowered into the water at a constant rate 
(fig. 3). This 'transit rate' is calculated 
based on the depth and velocity of 
streamflow and the size of the nozzle 
attached to the sampler. The DH-81 sam
pler is used for small streams and during 
low-flow conditions where wading a 
cross section is safe. A transit rate is 
determined before sampling begins. 

Figure 3. Use of a collapsible bag sampler on 
the Mississippi River at Thebes, Illinois. 

Samples collected from each sub
section of the cross section are compos
ited in a common vessel during the 
sampling process, which ensures that the 
sample sent to the laboratory for chemi
cal analysis is a representative sample. 
The time required to complete sampling 
of a cross section is from 2 to 4 hours, 
depending on the size of the stream, flow 
conditions, accessibility, and weather. 

Constituents Measured 

The composite sample is processed 
onsite in a USGS mobile field laboratory 
within 1 hour of collection. Aliquots of 
sample are removed from the common 
vessel and analyzed for pH and alkalin
ity. Temperature, dissolved oxygen, and 
specific conductance are measured 
instream at the centroid of flow during 
the sample collection process . Indicator 
bacteria are processed from a grab sam
ple collected at the centroid of flow. 

Additional aliquots of sample are pro
cessed using filtration and chemical pre
servatives for shipment to the USGS 
National Water Quality Laboratmy in 
Denver, Colorado. Constituents mea
sured in the laboratory include nitrogen 
and phosphorus species, major ions, 
chemical oxygen demand, trace metals, 
suspended solids, dissolved solids, 
organic carbon, and 47 pesticide com
pounds . Laboratory procedures meet 
quality-assurrance procedures by the 
USGS and generally exceed the detec
tion levels of similar analyses required 
for compliance purposes by the USEPA 
(Fishman and Friedman, 1989; Faires, 
1993; Zaugg and others, 1995). 

The USGS follows procedures to 
ensure the physical properties of the 
stream can be linked to the chemical 
composition of the sample collected. 
Therefore, before sample collection, the 
USGS technician either measures the 
flow in the stream or records it from an 
existing gaging station. In either case, 
the procedures for obtaining a flow value 
are given in Rantz and others ( 1982). 
Flow data in conjunction with a water
quality sample are useful during the data 
validation and interpretation process. 
Flow data permit scientists to calculate 
loads of various chemicals in surface 
water, determine the effects of dilution 
on surface-water chemistry, and deter
mine the time it will take for contami
nants to travel downstream. Twenty-four 
of the 65 Ambient Network stations have 
a permanently installed stream gage 
where a stage discharge relation has been 
established for the continuous calcula
tion of flow. At the remaining stations, 
flow is measured using a current meter 
and appropriate techniques to provide an 
instantaneous measurement. 

Uses for the Data 

The USGS has many uses for the 
data it collects, but the most important 
use is for answering environmental qual
ity questions on a National level. Spe
cific uses of water-quality data include 
characterizing the quality of streams 
within different physiographic plateaus 
and geohydrologic regimes; determining 
and understanding the changes in chem-



istry with time and defining trends as 
they relate to land use and water use 
change; establishing control points for 
smaller, site-specific environmental 
projects; and providing a source of unbi
ased data for use by State and Federal reg
ulators, as well as research scientists in 
the public, private, and academic sectors. 

The MoDNR uses the data to char
acterize 'ambient' water quality within 
and between aquatic ecoregions in Mis
souri; characterize diurnal, seasonal, and 
flow-related effects on water quality; 
characterize water-quality effects of spe
cific point or nonpoint source areas; ana
lyze data for long-term trends; and check 
for compliance with State water-quality 
standards. 

Data Availability 

All data collected for the Ambient 
Network and other USGS water-quality 
projects are stored in the National Water 
Information System (NWIS) data base. 
Before data are committed to the data 
base, they are carefully screened for 
transmission errors, analytical anoma
lies, and balance with other data col
lected from the same sample. Data 
collection, processing, and validation 
procedures are described in the Quality 
Assurance Project Plan (QAPP) devel
oped for the network annually. The 
QAPP is an unpublished document, but 

· it may be reviewed by contacting the 
Missouri Water-Quality Specialist (573-
308-3829 or jdavis@usgs.gov). Follow
ing validation, the data are available for 
use by the public. 

Data contained in the NWIS data 
base were transferred to the USEPA 
STORET data base annually until March 
1999. Future data will not be transferred to 
STORET until the compatibility concerns 
between NWIS and STORET are 
resolved. 

The Missouri District Water-Qual
ity Specialist is available to assist with 
data retrievals from the NWIS data base. 

For water information: 
U.S. Geological Survey, Director 
1400 Independence Road, Mail Stop 100 
Rolla, Missouri 6540 I 
(573) 308-3667 or "http://mo.water.usgs.gov" 

Historical data from 1995 to the current 
year are available in Adobe Acrobat Por
table Document Format on the Missouri 
homepage http://mo.water.usgs.gov. 
All historical data are available on 
the National USGS web page 
http://water.usgs .gov/nwis. 

In addition to the availability of 
data on the Web, data are published 
annually in "Water Resources Data for 
Missouri" . This hydrologic-data report 
for Missouri is one of a series of annual 
reports that document hydrologic data 
collected from USGS surface- and 
ground-water data collection networks in 
each State, Puerto Rico, and the Trust 
Territories. Copies of the annual report 
may be obtained by contacting the Dir
ector of Missouri (573-308-3667) or 
sending an email request to 
mo _reports@usgs.gov. 

References 

Fishman, M.J., and Friedman, L.C., 
1989, Methods for the determina
tion of inorganic substances in 
water and fluvial sediments: U.S . 
Geological Survey Techniques of 
Water-Resources Investigations, 
book 5, chap. A 1, 545 p. 

Faires, L.M., 1993, Methods of analysis 
by the U.S. Geological Survey 
National Water Quality Labora
tory-Determination of metals in 
water by inductively coupled 
plasma-mass spectrometry: U.S. 
Geological Survey Open-File 
Report 92-125, 28 p. 

Rantz, S.E., and others, 1982, Measure
ment and computation of stream
flow-Volume I, Measurement of 
Stage and Discharge: U.S. Geologi
cal ·Survey Water-Supply Paper 
2175, 284 p. 

U.S. Census Bureau, 1999, Missouri 
1990-98 Census, accessed January 
JO, 2000, at URL 
http://www.oseda.m issouri .edu/ 

For more information contact any of the following: 
For more information on all USGS 
reports and products (including maps, 
images, and computerized data), call 
1-888-ASK-USGS 

images99/population/ 
mopc9098.gif. 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, 
1998, Locate your watershed maps, 
aquatic/wetland species at risk-
1996, accessed January 10, 2000, at 
URL http://www.epa.gov/iwi/ 
1998oct/ii8 usmap.htm I. 

---1999, Locate your watershed 
maps, number of impaired 
waters-1998, accessed January 
I 0, 2000, at URL 
http ://www.epa.gov/iwi/ I 999apri I/ 
iii22 r7map.html. 

--- 2000, The quality of our 
Nation's waters-A summary of 
the National water quality inven
tory: Washington, D.C., 1998 
report to Congress: EPA 841-5-
00-001, Office of Water (4503F) . 

Ward, J .R., and Harr, C.A., eds., 1990, 
Methods for collection and pro
cessing of surface-water. and bed
material samples for physical and 
chemical analyses: U.S . Geological 
Survey Open-File Report 90-140, 
71 p. 

Wilde, F.D., Radtke, D.8., Gibs, J., and 
Iwatsubo, R.T., 1998, National 
field manual for the collection of 
water-quality data: U.S. Geological 
Survey Techniques of Water
Resources Investigations, book 9, 
chap. A2, 60 p. 

Zaugg, S.D., Sandstrom, M.W., Smith, 
S.G., and Fehlberg, K.M., 1995, 
Methods of analysis by the U.S. 
Geological Survey National Water
Qual ity Laboratory-Determ i na
tion of pesticides in water by C- 18 
solid-phase extraction and capil
lary-column gas chromatography/ 
mass spectrometry with selected
ion monitoring: U.S . Geological 
Survey Open-File Report 95-181 , 
60 p. 

Additional earth science information 
can be found by accessing the USGS 
"Home Page" on the World Wide Web 
al "http://www.usgs.gov" 



JOHNSON COUNTY SOIL & WATER 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

Mach 30, 2016 

DNR Soil & Water Conservation Program 
ATTN: Soil & Water Commission 
P.O. Box 176 
Jefferson City, MO 65102 

Dear Soil & Water Commission: 

727 PCA ROAD, SUITE B 
WARRENSBURG MO 64093 

(660) 747-8400 Ext. 3 

The Johnson County SWCD is requesting the Soil & Water Commission to appoint Danny Weigand 
327 NW 900 RD Warrensburg, MO 64093. This appointment would be for the remaining 2 years left on the 
term of Steve Ring, who has resigned from the board effective March 30, 2016. 

Attached are the resignation letter from Steve Ring and the Verification of Supervisor Eligibility form 
for Danny Weigand. 

Thank you, 

TomHaun v~ /!-z_ 
Board Chairman 

E1 

~U S Orcjl.1t11ncn1 o( Agn~hurc (USDA) profuh1ts d&scrimlrut1on in al l Ju prog.r.lms :md :.ct1nt1cs 011 the: b;uu o( r.a.:c, cclcr, n:.t1orul ongm .. £alder, rd1gi1XL :l&C, d1s.lbi l1t)·. pohLic:al cric:n:.11ion. :and nQntll er fanul~ itltll'i. isoc 211 prnh1b11cd tuSdi apply lo :di 
progr2rm). PC'tsoru \\ ith dn .. lbi lilJCS \\ho rcqum'.' :lhctn3t1\'C nlGU\S for communi~tioo of p~O&f".L'n infon:u:1on (Hr:tilk, brl)~ pri:\!, :i.~1ot:ipc. ctc.. i ihould oont.>Ct USDA', T1\RGET Center J.I (202) 7:0·UiX> (\'t1i'1: 3fld TI>O). To file l cotr.pllin1 cfdi5o:nmin.:u ion. 
~1ntc USDA. Dirroor, Offitt o f Cini Ril!f\l~ llooni 3Ui-W, Whincn Oulldmg.. I.Ith and h~nd • ..,,e ,\q ·nuc. SW, \\'.:ub:nb'10n. DC. ~<t? ~'J.I 10 or G11l (;?0::1720-59(,.l (\·oicc:o1TI>D). USDA iJ 3.n cqi.:.11 Dp?Jm.:nur p1c-.~1 aad rn1plo)t' r 



March 29, 2016 

Dear Board Members, 

It have been a pleasure to serve on the Johnson County Soil and Water Board over 

the past several years. Please accept this as my letter of resignation from the 

board effective March 30, 2016. I would like to thank the board for the 

opportunity to serve over the past several years and wish everyone the best of 

luck. 

Sincerely, · 

~:wx 97J 
Steve Ring 



VERIFICATION OF SUPERVISOR ELIGIBILITY 

To qualify for office, according to Missouri's Code of State Regulations, 
10 CSR 70-2.020, Conduct of Supervisor Elections, a candidate shall: 

1) Be a land representative as defined by "The owner, or representative authorized by power of 
attorney, of any farm lying within the soil and water conservation district (SWCD); provided, 

however, that any land representative must be a taxpayer of the county within which the SWCD 
is located," and 

2) Be a resident taxpaying citizen within that SWCD for two (2) years preceding the appointment 
to the District Board of Supervisors by the Commission, and 

3) Be a cooperator oftbe SWCD defined as "A person who is actively involved in fanning and 
· practices conservation activities related to agriculture," and 

4) Reside in or own a farm lying in the same territory where the board position is vacant. 

) 'Ll /J w cm O 

lJ °'n e-Y\ st)\; r ~ I \T\O 01-1oq3 
The undersigned certify that the candidate meets all of the above stated eligibility requirements 

to serve as a supervisor for the Johnson County Soil and Water Conservation District. 

Chairperson (or acting) Signature: __ ....,'1i,.,.__,,_~_,_----~---'=----- Date: } ~ 3 D- 1 b 

Candidate Signature: Date: 

IX- 15 05/01 /2011 





Callaway Soil and Water Conservation District 
4549 State Road H, Fulton, MO 65251 

(573) 592 - 1400 

February 23, 2016 

Members of the Commission: 

In late August, 2015, Callaway SWCD had contact with a landowner who expressed interest in 
participating in the cover-crop program. The Callaway SWCD technician met with him on 4 

September 2015 to take an initial look at his farm, discuss the requirements of the program - as 
they were understood - and, to perfom1 soil sampling. 

Over the next several weeks, a series of events caused the opportunity to help this landowner to 

slip through the cracks. 

First, Callaway SWCD had no landowners who participated in the cover-crop pilot program, so 
we had never written a contract for this practice before. The staff at Callaway SWCD either 

missed or failed to attend, any training that may have been provided by the program office on 
how to implement this new program. That is a failing on our part to properly prepare for the new 
program and how it was to be administered. 

Second, related to the first, we had a lack of understanding as to how and why the soil tests were 

being perfom1ed. Upon calling other districts for advice, some districts informed us that all the 
soil tests must be performed arid results received prior to any plan being approved. Other districts 
indicated that the tests could be run in conjunction with a signed contract, without results. Still , 
other districts informed us that the tests weren't required at all, as the follow-up tests were 
merely a recommendation - not a requirement - of the program; and without the follow-up tests 
to determine loss or gain, the results of the initial tests would be immaterial. 

Third, we faced a significant backlog of erosion control work involving structures that had been 
delayed due to a wet spring and late crop harvest. When a decision where to place emphasis 
arose, I elected to put the priority on landowners who had been on the list the longest; the erosion 
control measures that had been signed up for - in some cases - years prior to the cover-crop 
practices even being announced. 

Through these issues; the window of time to successfully plant cover crops was closing. Time 
. overtook our ability to take care of our landowners in a manner we would like. The result of this 

failure, was this landowner being forced to decide rather to plant - without a contract, and in 
good faith that we would be able to cost share with him - or deciding not to participate in cover 
crops at all. This landowner took the greater risk, by participating without a contract, and now is 

- understandably - upset that we cannot cost share with him on this project. 

E2 



Callaway Soil and Water Conservation District 
4549 State Road H, Fulton, MO 65251 

(573) 592 - 1400 

We feel like there were several breaks in the chain on the program delivery portion of this 
practice. Some of them are directly our district's failing; and we acknowledge that. However, 
some of the breaks involved aspects beyond our control, such as; insufficient training or 
instmction on program delivery, almost state-wide misunderstanding of program requirements, 
and weather delays. 

As this particular landowner took the initiative to complete the cover crop practice to the 
specifications required, we would like to ask that the commission allow this landowner to 
participate as if he had a signed contract from the very start. 

Thank you for your time, 

Matt Blansett 

District Specialist Ill 

Callaway SWCD 

Mb 

Callaway SWCD Board Chairman 



Callaway Soil and Water Conservation District 
4549 State Road H, Fulton, MO 65251 

(573) 592 - 1400 

Timeline of N340 Cover Crop Practice 

9-1-2015 Landowner called discussing interest in the cover crop practice. 

9-4-2015 Soil samples were taken in two fields on property. 

9-18-2015 Received word that mixture of Winter Rye, Tillage Radish, and Turnip 

had been planted, including 1 Yi tons of pot ash spread. 

2-23-2016 Landowner contacted the office asking about the payment on his cover 

crop planting. 





LEWIS SOIL & WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
504 S. WASHINGTON ST., MONTICELL01 MO. 63457 

573-767-5276 ext 3 

Lewis SWCD Supervisors 
Ron Krueger, Chainnen David McCutchan. Vice-Chairman David Stice, Treasurer Brenda Arnold, Secretary Randy Scoggin, Member 

March 17, 2016 

Soil & Water Conservation Commission 
P.O. Box 176 
Jefferson City, MO. 65102-0176 

Soil and Water Conservation Commission, 

In August and September 2015, Lewis County SWCD processed over 30 cost share contracts for cover 
crops and in the process one contract was overlooked and not completed. 

On March 11, 2016, Clint Briscoe was in the Lewis Co SWCD office in order to verify the office had all 
the information they would need to process payments for his N340 contracts. While reviewing the SHAC 
information provided by the program office on March 8, 2016, the district and Mr. Briscoe discovered one 
contract had been overlooked by the district staff and had not been processed. This operator had signed 
up several landowners and was approved for 4 other N340 contracts. The operator was under the 
impression that all contracts had been approved for cost share so he planted the cover crop last year and 
submitted the required soil sample for the overlooked farm to the Soil Health Assessment Center. 

On the overlooked property, Landowners Cottingham, Flynn & Flynn with the assistance of Operator 
Clint Briscoe requested cost share assistance for 2 fields totaling 88.4 acres to plant wheat as the cover 
crop. The case file had the completed landowner authorization and vendor input forms but no other 
paperwork has been completed. If approved, the contract would provide cost share for 88.4 acres at $30 
per acre (for 1-2 species) as well as one soil test. The total cost share amount for this N340 contract 
would be $2719.50. The Lewis Co SWCD has sufficient FY16 cost share funds to fund this contract. We 
feel this was an oversite of the district staff and not the landowner or operator's fault 

The Lewis County SWCD requests the commission to grant approval for a N340 cost share contract for a 
total of$2719.50 for Cottingham, Flynn & Flynn. We appreciate your consideration in this matter. 

Sincerely, 

Ronald Krueger, Chairman 
Lewis Co SWCD 

The U.S. Department of Agriculture {USDA) prohibits discrimination in all its programs and activities on the basis of race, color, national origin, gender, 
religion, age, disability, political beliefs, sexual orientation, and marital or family status. (Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) Persons with 
disallllities who t"Cquirc: altcmative means for communication of program information (Braille, large print, audiotape, etc.) should contact USDA 's TAR.GET 
Center ar 202-720-2600 (voice and TDD).To file a complaint of discrimination, write USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights, Room 326W, Whitten Building, 
141h and Indc:pcndence Avenue, SW. Washington, DC 20250-9410 or can (202) 720-5964 (voice or TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider and 
employer 





C.amden County Soil and Water Conservation District 
275 Old South 5 - Camdenton, MO 65020 - Phone: 573-346-5125 

March 22, 2016 

Missouri Soil & Water Conservation Commission 

PO Box 176 

Jefferson City, MO 65101 

Dear Commission Members: 

RE: Request for Cost-Share Variance 

We would like to request a variance for one of our landowners. Mr. Leonard C. Franklin, a Camden 

County landowner, has recently started actively working his farm. He came to our office in January 2015 

for advice for his farming operation. He brought soil tests and our technician made recommendations 

and discussed the DSP-2 -No-Till program with Mr. Franklin. After visiting the farm our technician also 

suggested Mr. Franklin a~end a grazing school. Mr. Franklin did attend a school in April of 2015. In 

August of 2015, Mr. Franklin brought in updated soil tests. At this time our technician worked up 

information for the DSP 3.4, Grazing System Lime. Mr. Franklin was approved for 191.6 acres of lime 

and paid $8560.11 in November of 2015. 

This month, March 2016, Mr. Franklin contacted our technician requesting more information on 

proceeding with fertilizer and seed. The technician informed him he was not eligible to do cost-share 

since his acreage was under the DSP3-4 maintenance agreement. 

Mr. Franklin feels he has not been treated fairly and the technician gave him bad advice. Evidently Mr. 

Franklin thought he was working on a DSP-2 practice and applying the lime six months in advance, which 

according to his soil test was · necessary. 

If Mr. Franklin had completed 160 acres of the no-till practice he would have received about twice the 

amount he received for applying just lime on the 191.6 acres. 

Since Mr. Franklin is not familiar with our cost-share program and not familiar with our acronyms, we 

feel there was not adequate communication between our technician and the landowner. We have also 

spoken to our technician about his communication, making sure new clients are aware of the practices 

and giving better advice. 

Earnest L. Calvert 

Chairman 

Joseph Moulder 

Vice-Cha irman 

Jeff Apperson 

Secretary 

Troy Frederick 

Treasurer 

CONSERVATION - DEVELOPMENT - SELF-GOVERNfvlENT 

E3 



We are asking a variance be approved, ·allowing the landowner to utilize the DSP-2 but not paying on the 

lime since it has already been applied and paid. We feel Mr. Franklin was earnestly trying to improve his 

farm and came to our office anticipating accurate advice. We do not want to leave a bad impression on 

the Soil and Water program and would like to create a more positive image, while also improving Mr. 

Franklin's farm. 

Sincerely, 

(/..., .~4 ; 1 .1 J 

- .£;-£{/r'~ :/ .,-. - LOJ:::.,.~~._,.--

Earnest L. Calvert 

President 

~' ~Q \~ !\ ,., \f-' ~~~ Alf----~ 
JGseph Moulder e Apperson Tro Frederick 

Vice-President Secretary Treasurer 



Grazing Management Resource Concern 

DSP-02 Permanent Vegetative Cover Enhancement 

Purpose 
1. Reduce soil erosion and improve water quality. 

2. Improve the productive cover of existing pastureland with the demonstration of no-till, inter
seeding oflegumes by the use of no-till drills; to protect the soil and prevent the pollution of 
air, land or water from agricultural uses. 

Applicability 
1. Applies to pastureland and hay land only where non-woody, permanent vegetative cover is in 

poor or very poor condition, with less than thirty percent (30%) introduced legumes, to be 
improved to good condition; or to fescue pastureland in better than poor condition with less 
than thirty percent (30%) introduced legumes and where fescue-endophyte fungus infestation 
levels are greater than thirty percent (30%) and less than seventy percent (70%). The 
argument has been made that during certain times of the year, a particular fescue stand will 
show lower levels of endophyte infestation than what is actually present. The board, with the 
help of University Extension, should make every effort to inform the cooperator of the proper 
method and timing of taking the endophyte test. The purpose of the endophyte test is to 
determine the level of infestation. The test should not be taken just to qualify for cost-share. 

2. In the case of fescue eligibility, the percent legume in the fescue pasture must be less than 
thirty percent (30%). Lespedeza is excluded from the measurement. The fescue-endophyte 
infestation level must be greater than thirty percent (30%) and less than seventy percent 
(70%) as determined by a proper endophyte test. Refer to NRCS Technical Note No. 17. 

3. For purposes of this practice, poor pasture condition shall include "poor" and "very poor," 
with numeric values of 20 or less as detennined by the use of the JS-Agron 24. 

Erosion Requirements 
Practice is eligible for cost-share based sheet and rill erosion. Pre-installation erosion rates must 
be less than or equal to tolerable soil loss. 

Sheet & Rill Erosion Checks: PRE-INSTALL < OR = T 

Specifications 
The completed practice must meet the NRCS Standards and Specifications for Forage and 
Biomass Planting (512), Prescribed Grazing (528), and Vegetation Establishment, Herbaceous 
Seeding (723) contained in the Field Office Technical Guide. 

Policies 

1. Haying is permitted to manage and maintain the legume when grazing alone does not control 
grass and weed growth. 

V-41 07/13/20 IS 



2. Cost-share is authorized for: 

a. Limestone and fertilizer. Assistance is limited to the minimum requirements based on 
legume establishment recommendations, as determined by a soil test. Cost-share for 
limestone may be approved for the amount needed up to a maximum of 1,500 pounds 
effective neutralizing material (ENM). Any amount over 1,500 pounds of ENM is the 
cooperator's responsibility. For those tests which have an ENM requirement of less than 
600 pounds per acre, the cooperator has the option of applying the requirement. 

b. Interseed Legumes. Permanent vegetative cover based on the DSP-02 Interseed Legumes 
component. 

c. Reseeding, under the conditions listed in Section V, subsection E, for a maximum of 80 
acres. 

3. Cost-share is not authorized for: 

·Y:-

a. Measures which would constitute complete re-establishment of existing cover. 

b. Nitrogen. 

c. 

d. 

e. 

f. 

g. 

h. 

1. 

Nutrient application based on crop production goals rather than establishment 
recommendations. 

Nutrient build-up. Fertilizer application is to be consistent with one.year's nutrient 
requirements for a four or eight year nutrient buildup plan. 

Chemicals. 

Broadcast or aerial sowing of legume seed. 

Woody or rocky fields where a no-till drill would not perfom1 adequately. 

Fields where woody vegetation has been cleared and no improvements or maintenance of 
soil cover has since been performed. 

Land already established in permanent vegetative cover which is under the maintenance 
agreement of any program. 

J. Fields with pre-install erosion rates above "T." 

k. Harvest of grass or legume seed. 

Maximum State Cost-Share 
1. Assistance can not exceed 160 acres per cooperator for all farms owned by that cooperator. 

If the land changes ownership, the new owner would be eligible to receive cost-share for the 
practice provided the land qualifies and the new owner has not previously met the cost-share 
maximum for the practice. It is the board's responsibility to see that the commission's intent 
that no more than 160 acres of DSP-02 is demonstrated per cooperator. 

2. Assistance is limited to 75% of the county average cost, not to exceed the state average cost. 

3. Utilize the Practice Limits Detail report in Mo~WIMS to ensure compliance with applicable 
maximums. 

V-42 07/13/2015 



Grazing Management Resource Concern 

DSP 3.4 Grazing System Lime 

Purpose 
1. Improve or maintain desired species composition and vigor of plant community. 

2. Improve or maintain surface and/or subsurface water quality and quantity. 

3. Improve or maintain riparian and watershed function. 

4. Reduce accelerated soil erosion and maintain or improve soil condition. 

Applicability 
Applies to pastureland where permanent vegetative cover is established and can be enhanced 
through the use of a planned grazing system. The system operator must follow an approved 
grazing system plan. The system operator must attend an approved grazing school provided by 
University of Missouri, in conjunction with NRCS, prior to the district's submittal of a contract 
for review. 

Erosion Requirements 
Practice has no erosion requirements. 

Specifications 
The completed practice must meet the NRCS Standards and Specifications for Prescribed 
Grazing (528), and Nutrient Management (590) contained in the Field Office Technical Guide. 

Policies 

1. Cooperators must have an approved grazing plan prior to contract board approval. 

2. Cost-share is authorized for: 

a. Lime application on existing systems that meet NRCS standard and specifications for 
Prescribed Grazing (528). 

b. One time application of lime in accordance with minimum cover improvement needed, as 
determined by a soil test. 

1) If determination is made that requires application of greater than 1,500 lbs. of ENM 
per acre, the cooperator is required to apply a minimum of 1,500 lbs. of ENM per 
acre. Cost-share may be provided for more than 1,500 lbs. of ENM, not to exceed the 
maximum of $50 per acre. 

2) If lime is applied in split application when large amounts of ENM are required, the 
contract must remain unpaid until all lime is applied. 

3. Cost-share is not authorized for: 

a. Lime, ifN590 Nutrient Management was previously completed. 

Maximum State Cost-Share 
1. Assistance is limited to 75% of the established county cost, not to exceed the state average 

cost. 

V-55 07/13/2015 



2. Maximum of $50 per acre for a one time application of limestone and in accordance to the 
soil test recommendations for a planned grazing system. 

3. Utilize the Practice Limits Detail repo1i in MoSWIMS to ensure compliance with applicable 
maxunums. 

Map Requirements 
1. Shapefiles from NRCS's Toolkit program must be saved on the district's T:\ drive prior to 

contract approval. The shapefiles must contain attributes that show the following 
infonnation that pertains to the contract: 
• Farm Perimeter 
• Acreage Completed under DSP 3.4 and/or DSP 3.5 
• Location of Power Source . 
• System Acreage . 
• Field Numbers 
• Any other feature that may affect the completed system. 

a. Planned items must be shown and labeled with the fiscal year to be installed. 

• Planned Fence 
• Planned Pipeline 
• Planned Water Source 
• Planned Watering Facility (Specify Tank or Hydrant) 
• Planned Lime Application 
• Planned Seeding Application 

b. Existing items must be labeled with the fiscal year installed and funding source (EQIP, 
SWCP, etc.). 

• Existing Fence, including existing perimeter and cross fences 
• Existing Pipeline 
• Existing Water Source 
• Existing Watering Facility (Specify Tank or Hydrant) 

2. A map that displays the completed practice must be scanned and attached as a document type 
"Map" in MoSWIMS prior to contract payment submission. 

Technical Responsibilities 
Technical staff has the responsibility for detennining the need for the practice, for design of the 
practice based upon the minimum extent necessary, and to certify that the completed practice 
meets NRCS standards and specifications within commission policy. 

Acres Served 
Acreage established in permanent vegetative cover that is treated with lime. Heavily forested 
acreage and cropland are not eligible. 

Extent Installed 
Acres. 

Mainteriance Life 
5 years. 

V-56 07/13/20 l 5 



E4 

Gasconade Count)' Soil and Water Consen'ation District 
314 South Olive - Owensville, MO 65066 - Phone (573) 437-3478 - Fax 855-842-7890 

March 10, 2016 

Soil & Water Conservation Commission 
Department of Natural Resources 
PO Box 716 
Jefferson City, MO 65101 

Dear Commissioners, 

We would like to request a variance to the Cover Crop no-tillage requirement due to the recent 
flooding event that happened here in Gasconade County. 

We are attaching pictures of the fields for Aaron Bossaller, contract# 062-16-0012 ($876.00) 
and 062-16-0013 ($1,762.50). Mr. Bossaller has turned in all of his receipts for the cost of 
adequate seed and the soil health analysis requirements. 

Due to the recent flood event, he has several areas in the field that must be addressed before he 
can no-till his cash crop of soybeans. He would like to vertically till the areas to smooth them 
down so that he can "safely" no-till his crop. There will be minimum tillage involved. 

We ask that you provide Mr. Bossaller, with a one-time variance to vertically till his fields in 
preparation for no-till planting, while maintaining his current contracts. Thank you for your 
consideration in this matter. 

Sincerely, 

#Lf/-zg~ 
Mike Haeffuer 
Vice-Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

Helping People Help the Land 

Board of Supervisors 
Dennis Berger, Chairman 

Mike Haeffuer, Vice-Chairman 
Matt Estes, Treasurer 

Debra Nowack, Member 
Matt Herring, Secretary 

An Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 

Conservation - Development - Self-Government 





Franklin County SWCD Board Letter 

To: Soil and Water District Commission 

This letter is in regards to our Cover Crop (N340} practice. 

Here in Franklin County, several of our cover crop participants had received damage to their fields from 

the December Flood event, through multiple sand deposits and scouring. 

We are requesting a variance to the cover crop policy to allow landowners to use tillage practices to 

smooth out their fields, to have a uniform seed bed for future planting for crops. 

Know Contracts: 
002-16-0019 
002-16-0015 
002-16-0013 





Sheet and Rill/Gully Erosion Resource Concern 

N340 Cover Crop 

Purpose 
Provide operators an incentive to encourage the adoption of cover crops for reducing soil 
erosion, improving water quality and soil health. 

The definition of operator for the purpose of this practice is any individual farming the land, who 
has incurred the expenses for the cover crops. The operator's name should also be listed on file 
with FSA as the operator of such land. 

Applicability 
Applies to cropland acres where row crops are grown and soil erosion needs to be prevented or 
water quality and soil health improved. 

Erosion Requirements 
Practice has no erosion requirements to qualify. However, pre- and post-erosion rates need to be 
recorded in Mo SWIMS to capture the erosion benefits of the practice. 

Specifications 
The completed components of the practice must meet the NRCS Standards and Specifications for 
Conservation Crop Rotation (328) and Cover Crop (340) contained in the Field Office Technical 
Guide. 

Policies 

1. 

2. 

3. 

* 
4. 

5. 

6. 

The contract must contain the name of the legal owner. If an operator is participating, the 
landowner must complete an "Operator Authorization" form. 

Contracted acres must currently be in a minimum of a 2 species production crop rotation. 

Cover crops must be no-tilled or broadcast seeded with either ground equipment or aerial. 

Production crop following the cover crops must be planted using a no-till system on the 
contracted acres. No-till is defined as per standard 329 for Residue and Tillage 
Management No-Till. 

Payment can be issued after no-till planting of the production crops into the (terminated) 
cover crops or after May 25 if the production crop has not yet been planted. 

Cooperators must adopt cover crops in compliance with the Cover Crop (340) standard 
as part of this practice. In addition: 

a. All cover crop seedings must be plam1ed with a minimum of 25% cool-season annual 
grass, small grain component or warm season grass. (Caution should be taken when 
selecting Annual Ryegrass for a cover crops mix.) 

b. Spring planted cover crops must have been planted at least 60 days prior to being 
terminated. 

V-34 07113/2015 



c. Cover crops will be terminated as late as practical to maximize plant biomass 
production and nutrient uptake. Landowners need to take into consideration timing 
for next crop and crop insurance requirements. 

d. Cover crops will not be harvested for grain, seed or hayed. 

e. Cover crops may be grazed once the forages have reached a minimum height of 6-8 
inches with enough biomass produced to justify grazing. However, grazing should 
not occur if it will damage the forages so that their effectiveness as a cover crop 
would be impacted. Grazing will need to stop once the forages have been grazed 
down to 4 inches. 

f. Tillage cannot be used to terminate the cover crops. 

g. N595 Pest Management practice may be utilized to terminate the cover crops. The 
pest management plan must be developed to address the termination of the cover crop 
and all pest issues that may occur during the next production crop growing season. 

h. A soil sample for the Initial Standard Soil Health Package test through the Missouri 
Soil Health Assessment Center (SHAC) must be taken on each field prior to seeding 
cover crops. The initial sample will need to be taken only for the first state cost-share 
contract on the field . The number of samples per field will be determined by the 
sampling requirements provided by SHAC. 

There is a second soil health test through SHAC called Follow-Up Standard Soil 
Health Package that landowners are encouraged to do four or five years after 
implementing cover crops on a fi~ld. If a landowner receives cost-share again on a 
field four or five years later to implement the practice, the landowner can receive a 
cost-share payment on the cost of the test. The number of samples per field will be 
determined by the sampling requirements provided by SHAC. 

7. The NRCS MO JS Agron 340 Cover Crop Design Worksheet documentation must be 
scanned into MoSWIMS as supporting documentation when the contract is submitted for 
review. 

Cost-share is authorized: 
a. For incentive payments for operators (including landowner-operators) who implement all 

required components of the Cover Crop practice. 
b. For soil health assessment testing through the University of Missouri SHAC for either the 

Initial Standard Soil Health Package or Follow-Up Standard Soil Health Package. 

Cost-share is not authorized for: 
a. Cover crops in pasture or hay land. 

Maximum State Cost-Share 
1. Operators participating in the Cover Crop practice will be eligible for 75% of the component 

cost of the test through SHAC and an incentive payment of $30/acre/year for a 1 or 2 species 
cover crop mix or $40/acre/year for 3 or more species cover crop mix with a life time 
maximum total payment of $20,000 per operator. Utilize Practice Limits Detail report in 
MoSWIMS to ensure compliance with applicable maximums. 

V-35 07/ 13/2015 




